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CITY OF GREENWOOD 

OFFICE: 662-453-2246 
FAX: 662-451-9075 

July 22,2015 

Office of the State Auditor 
Attn: Janice Dendy 
P. O. Box 956 
Jackson, MS 39211 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

Accompanying this letter are two hard copies of the annual audit of the City of 
Greenwood, Mississippi, for the fiscal year ended September 30,2014. A separate 
management letter was not written to the city in connection with this audit. 

If there are questions, please contact Nick Joseph, Jr. at 662-453-2246 or P. O. Box 907, 
Greenwood, Ms 38935-0907. 

SincerelY'l.A_ 1. 

J!t~~t· 
City Clerk 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the City Council 
City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Greenwood, 
Mississippi (the City), as ofand for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of the Greenwood-Leflore Public Library, which represent 58 percent, 58 percent, and 53 percent, respectively, of the 
assets, net position, and revenues of the discretely presented component units. We did not audit the financial statements of the 
Greenwood Utilities, which represent 53 percent, 78 percent, and 84 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and 
revenues of the business-type activities. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to 
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Greenwood-Leflore Public Library and Greenwood 
Utilities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The 
financial statements of the Greenwood Tourism Commission, shown in the discretely-presented component units column, were 
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund. 

105 West President Ave.• P.O. Box 894· Greenwood, MS 38935' P. 662-453-7112' F. 662-453-7123 
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City Council 
June 22, 2015 
Page 2 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary lriformation 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis 
and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-13 and 21-23 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other lriformation 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's 
basic financial statements. The supplemental information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part ofthe basic financial statements. 

The supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental infonnation is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 22, 2015, on our consideration of 
the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Fred T. Neely & Company, PLLC 

~~W7Jc:;,,~Yr?LU 
Greenwood, Mississippi 
June 22,2015 

105 West President Ave. • P.O. Box 894· Greenwood, MS 38935· P. 662-453-7112· F. 662-453-7123 
2 



~."'.'.'..I 


I 

Itit 

,. ···· 
I
 
I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

..i 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 




iIi...·.. 


CITY OF GREENWOOD 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 


The discussion and analysis of The City of Greenwood's (the City's) financial performance 
provides an overall review of the City's financial activities for the year ended September 30, 
2014. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the City's financial performance as a 
whole. Readers should also review the basic financial statements to enhance their understanding 
of the City's financial performance. 

Financial Highlights: 
Key financial highlights for 2014 were as follows: 

• 	 The assets of the City of Greenwood exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the 
close of the 2014 fiscal year by $101,882,952. Of this amount, there is $25,021,780 in 
unrestricted net position that can be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to it 
citizens and creditors. 

• 	 The government's total net position increased by $3,416,259. 
• 	 The total assets of governmental activities decreased by $638,055. 
• 	 The City's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $4,581,703 this 

year. This compares to the prior year ending fund balance of $4,510,987 showing an 
increase of $70,716. Approximately 63% of this total, $2,880,799 is available for 
spending at the government's discretion. 

• 	 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$2,880,799 or 26% of total General Fund expenditures including transfers and 26% of 
total General Fund revenues including transfers, sale of real estate and proceeds from 
capital leases. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) 
government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the 
financial statements. The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement 
the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
The City'S annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements 
provide both long-term and short-term information about the City's overall status. Financial 
reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis 
in full accrual accounting. 

101 West Church Street • Post Office Box 907 • Greenwood, MS 38935-0907 
Phone (662) 453-2246 • Fax (662) 455-7635 • www.cityofgreenwood.org l 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement ofNet Position. This is the City­
wide statement of financial position presenting information which includes all of the 
City's assets, deferred outflows and liabilities plus deferred inflows, with the difference reported 
as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator 
of whether the financial position of the City as a whole is improving or deteriorating. 

The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the 
City's net position changed during the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses 
are included regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the City that 
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as grants, from 
business-type activities that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs 
through user fees and charges. Governmental activities include general government, public 
safety, public works, health and welfare, culture and recreation, interest on long-term debt, 
miscellaneous appropriations and industrial development. Business-type activities include sewer 
enterprise, solid waste enterprise and electric/water utilities. Fiduciary funds of which the city 
only has agency funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statement, but are excluded 
from government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources that are 
not available to fund City programs. Fiduciary fund financial statements report similarly to 
proprietary funds. 

The government-wide financial statements include the City of Greenwood and Greenwood 
Utilities (a blended component unit) shown as the primary government and two organizations for 
which the City is accountable, the Tourism Commission and the Public Library, discretely 
presented component units. Financial information for the discretely presented component units 
are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government 
itself. Financial statements for these agencies can be obtained at the following addresses: 

• Greenwood Tourism Commission, III East Market St., Greenwood, MS 38930 
• Greenwood-Leflore Public Library, 405 West Washington St., Greenwood, MS 38930 
• Greenwood Utilities, 101 Wright Place, Greenwood, MS 38930 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific 
activities or objectives. The City uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related laws and regulations. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements 
focus on the City'S most significant funds rather than the City as a whole. Major funds are 
separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 

The analysis of the City'S major funds begins on page 17. Fund financial reports provide 
detailed information about the City's major funds. Based on restrictions on the use of monies, the 
City has established many funds, which account for the multitude of services provided to the 
City'S residents. However, these fund financial statements focus on the City'S most significant 
funds. In the case of the City of Greenwood, the City's major governmental fund is the General 

4 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


Fund, and the major proprietary funds are the Sewage Enterprise Fund and Greenwood Utilities 
Fund. 

Governmental Funds 
All of the City's activities are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in 
future periods. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the 
City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund 
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be 
spent in the near future on services provided to the City's residents. The relationship between 
governmental activities and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Greenwood adopts an annual budget for all of its funds. Budgetary comparison 
statements have been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-23 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 
The City of Greenwood maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the Sewage and Solid Waste 
Enterprise Funds and the Greenwood Utilities Fund. The City uses an internal service fund to 
account for its Employee Benefit Trust Fund. Because these services predominantly benefit 
governmental rather than business-type functions, it has been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the Sewage Enterprise Fund and the Greenwood Utilities Fund, which are 
considered to be major funds of the City of Greenwood. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-27 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic financial statements. 
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29-75 of this report. 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


Financial Analysis of the City as a whole 
You will note that the statement of net position looks at the City as a whole. Table 1 provides a 
summary of the City's net position for 2014 compared to 2013. 

Table 1 

Net Position 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Governmental Activities Business-t~pe Activities Total 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Current & other assets 
Capital assets, net 

Total Assets 

$ 10,380 
26,700 
37,080 

$ 10,633 
27,083 
37,716 

$ 29,618 
92,757 

122,375 

$ 29,813 
72,690 

102,503 

$ 39,998 
119,457 
159,455 

$ 40,446 
99,773 

140,219 

Current & other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

526 

879 
5,463 
6,868 

829 

881 
6,039 
7,749 

8,199 

982 
361603 
45,784 

11,337 

693 
16,193 
28,223 

8,725 

1,861 
42,066 
52,652 

12,166 

1,574 
22,232 
35,972 

Deferred inflows of resources 4,880 4,896 40 45 4,920 4,941 

Net investment in capital assets 20,607 20,427 55,026 55,708 75,633 76,135 
Restricted: 

Capital projects l3 13 
Debt service 984 984 984 984 
Community development 

projects 112 112 112 112 
Other Purposes 119 181 119 181 

Unrestricted 3,497 3,367 21,525 18,527 25,022 21,894 
Total Net Position $ 25,332 $ 25,071 $ 76,551 $ 74,235 $ 101,883 $ 99,306 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Greenwood was able to report positive balances 
in all three categories of net position, both for the City as a whole and for its separate 
governmental and business-type activities. 

The largest portion of the City's net position (74%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that 
is still outstanding. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related 
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to repay these liabilities. Total assets 
increased by $19,233,771. Capital assets increased by $19,681,866. Net position of the City'S 
governmental activities increased by $385,530. Unrestricted assets are sufficient to pay 
liabilities payable from unrestricted assets. 

6 
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City of Greenwood 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
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Table 2 provides a summary of the Changes in Net Position government-wide fdr the year"ended 
September 30, 2014, compared to the year ended September 30, 2013. 

Table 2 

Changes in Net Position 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
Revenues: 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

L 
Program revenues 

Charges for services $ 1,020 $ 1,761 $ 37,796 $ 39,437 $ 38,816 $ 41,198 
Operating grants & contributions 364 546 364 546 
Capital grants & contributions 508 1,203 346 923 854 2,126 

L 
(JeneraI revenues 

Property taxes 4,737 4,610 4,737 4,610 
Sales taxes 4,450 4,419 4,450 4,419 
Franchise taxes 311 285 311 285 
Investment earnings 7 12 32 40 39 52 
Gain(loss) on sale/retirement of fixed 
assets (305) (6) (34) (6) (339) 
(Jrants & contributions not 
restricted to specific programs 193 192 193 192 

Total revenues 11,590 12,723 38,168 40,366 49,758 53,089 

Expenses: 
(Jeneral government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health, welfare & sanitation 
Culture & recreation 
Economic Development 
Interest on long-term debt 
Miscellaneous appropriations 
Industrial development 
Sewer 
Solid waste 
Unemployment Compensation 
Electric/water 

1,475 
7,418 
2,188 

17 
464 

96 
224 
620 

1,570 
7,590 
2,352 

196 
471 
194 
261 
590 

2,170 2,231 
1,955 1,891 

14 6 
29,701 31,192 

1,475 
7,418 
2,188 

17 
464 

96 
224 
620 

2,170 
1,955 

14 
29,701 

1,570 
7,590 
2,352 

196 
471 
194 
261 
590 

2,231 
1,891 

6 
31,192 

Total expenses 12,502 13,224 33,840 35,320 46,342 48,544 

Increase (decrease) in net position 
before transfers $ (912) $ (501) $ 4,328 $ 5,046 $ 3,416 $ 4,545 

Transfers 1,298 1,850 (1,298) (1,850) 
Change in net position 386 1,349 3,030 3,196 3,416 4,545 
Net position - October 1 (restated) 24,946 23,722 73,521 71,039 98,467 94,761 
Net position - September 30 $ 25,332 $ 25,071 $ 76,551 $ 74,235 $ 101,883 $ 99,306 

The decrease in net position before transfers for 2014 as compared to 2013 for governmental 
activities is primarily due to a decrease in grant funds received from the Surface Transportation 
Grant and the Mississippi Development Authority Infrastructure Grant. The increase in net 
position before transfers for 2014 as compared to 2013 for business-type activities is due 
primarily to an increase in sewer and electric utility rates, offset by a decrease in sales of 
generated power to the Municipal Energy Agency of Mississippi and electrical sales to 
customers by the Greenwood Utilities. 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


Governmental Activities 
Several revenues sources fund our Governmental Activities. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, sales taxes accounted for $4,450,269 or 46% of general revenues less transfers and 
property taxes accounted for $4,736,745 or 49% of general revenues less transfers. 

Major expense activities, under the accrual basis of accounting, include public safety which 
accounted for 59% of total governmental activities expenses, public works accounted for 17% 
and general government accounted for 12%. The City of Greenwood is committed to providing 
the best services possible for its citizens. 

Business-type Activities 
User fees fund our business-type activities. User fees accounted for $37,796,029 or 99% of 
gross revenues less transfers with investment earnings, grants and contributions accounting for 
the remaining I % of gross revenues. 

Major expense activities include electric/water accounting for 88% of total expenses, sewer 
accounting for 6% and solid waste accounting for 6%. 

The City is committed to providing the basic services expected by the citizens of Greenwood. 

The City's Funds 
The focus of the City'S governmental funds is to provide information on current inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City'S 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of 
the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined 
ending fund balance of $4,581,703, a decrease of $70,716 in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 63% of the City'S governmental fund balance, $2,880,799 constitutes unassigned 
fund balance that is available for spending at the City's discretion. Of the remaining fund 
balance, $892 is restricted for public safety, $188,994 is restricted for public works, $16,460 for 
health & welfare, $566,615 for economic development & assistance and $408,882 is restricted 
for debt service. Assigned fund balances are: $10,142 for culture & recreation, $34,985 for 
public safety, $341,021 for special projects and $132,913 for economic development & 
assistance. 

Information about the City'S major governmental funds begins on page 17. These funds are 
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Total governmental revenues were 
$11,533,791 and total governmental expenditures were $12,949,539. Total other financing 
sources for governmental funds were $1,486,464. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $2,880,799 compared to $2,723,023 in 2013. 
The General Fund's unassigned fund balance increased by $157,776. 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


General Fund BUdgeting Highlights 
The City's budgets are prepared according to Mississippi law and are based on accounting for 
transactions on a modified cash basis. The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund. 

During the course of 2014, the City amended its general fund budget as needed. 
Recommendations for a budget amendment originate with the department head, are approved by 
the Mayor and submitted to the City Clerk to be placed on the agenda for City Council approval. 
The City does not allow budget changes that modify line items within departments without 
Council approval. With the General Fund supporting many of our major activities such as police 
and fire protection, legislative and executive activities, public works and recreational activities, 
the General Fund is monitored closely looking for possible revenue shortfalls or overspending by 
individual departments. The General Fund's original budgeted revenues including transfers were 
$11,614,083 and final budgeted revenues including transfers were $11,659,398. Actual revenue 
collections including transfers were $11,180,523 on the budgetary basis. There was no major 
factor contributing to the decrease in actual revenue compared to budgeted amounts. The 
General Fund's original budgeted operating expenditures including transfers were $11,614,083 
compared to the final budget amount of $11,673,870. Actual expenditures including transfers 
were $10,984,494 on the budgetary basis. 

Capital Assets and General Long-Term Obligations 
Capital Assets 

Table 3 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at September 30, 2014 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Governmental Activities Business-t~pe Activities Total 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Land $ 3,488 $ 3,398 451 $ 451 $ 3,939 $ 3,849 
Infrastructure 16,243 14,415 15,321 15,609 31,564 30,024 
Building & improvements 4,811 5,101 194 195 5,065 5,302 
Mobile equipment 1,444 1,145 560 1,330 2,004 3,015 
Equipment & furniture 331 372 149 204 480 516 
Electric and water production plant 11,821 12,651 11,821 l2,651 
Electric and water distribution plant 30,002 29,951 30,002 29,951 
Electric and water general plant 2,815 2,556 2,815 2,556 
Construction in progress 323 2,041 31,444 9,132 31,161 11,179 

$ 26,100 $ 21,084 $ 92,151 $ 72,691 $ 119,451 $ 99,115 

The primary increase to capital assets was in the construction in progress due to the ongoing 
projects for wastewater treatment upgrades. Upon completion of the construction-in-progress 
projects, the total construction costs will be added to buildings or infrastructure, as applicable, 
and depreciation will begin in that fiscal year. 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


General Long-Term Obligations 
At September 30, 2014, the City of Greenwood had $3,750,000 in outstanding general obligation 
bonds, $1,620,000 in MBIA bonds for Milwaukee Electric Tool, $33,765,887 in state revolving 
loans with the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality, and $3,310,000 in sewer 
system refunding bonds. 

The City's legal debt margin for the issuance of general obligation bonds at September 30, 2014, 
was $16,214,013. 

Table 4 compares the total outstanding long-term obligations of the City at September 30, 2014 
to 2013 amounts. 

Table 4 


Outstanding Notes and Long-term Obligations at Year End 


(amounts expressed in thousands) 


Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

General obligation bonds $ 3,750 $ 4,050 $ - $ - $ 3,750 $ 4,050 
General obligation bonds-MBIA 
issue 1,620 1,800 1,620 1,800 
Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2012 3,310 3,885 3,310 3,885 

State revolving loans 33,860 12,848 33,860 12,848 

Capital Improvement Loan 479 479 

Compensated absences 249 263 399 435 648 698 

Capital leases 669 758 107 257 776 1,015 

$ 6,288 $ 6,871 $ 38,155 $ 17,425 $ 44,443 $ 24,296 

The general obligation bonds for the governmental activities are being repaid by an annual debt 
service tax levy. The general obligation bonds for the MBIA issue are being repaid by 
Milwaukee Electric Tool Corporation in the form of monthly rents of $24,864. 

The state revolving loans are repaid by a reduction in sales tax revenue received from the 
Mississippi Department of Revenue monthly; however, the Sewage Enterprise Fund reimburses 
the General Fund for the monthly reduction. 

The Capital Improvement loan is a revolving loan issued by the Mississippi Development 
Authority due in monthly installments of $3,035 for 240 months beginning 30 days after the 
completion date of the project. This project is ongoing and incomplete at the time this report was 
issued. 

The sewer revenue refunding bonds are being repaid through user charges. 

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt outstanding as of September 30, 2014, 
including interest, by source of retirement are presented in Table 5 for bonds and notes. The 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


Sewer Rehab Revolving Loan - Phase V for approximately $39,025,000 is not included. Interest 
at 1.75% per annum (compounded monthly) on amounts paid to the City commences on the Loan 
November 9, 2014, and will be added to the final allowable project costs to determine the 
principal amount to be repaid. Principal and interest payments in the amount of $194,873 
commence August, 2015, for a period of237 months subject to amendment, if need be. 

TableS 


Annual Cash Demand by Type of Debt 


Capital 
GOBonds- Sewer Refunding State Revolving Improvement 

FYE GO Bonds MBIA Bonds Loan Loan TOTAL 

2015 $ 439,948 $ 225,900 $ 653,213 $ 486,587 $ $ 1,805,648 

2016 449,078 220,500 656,513 486,588 36,423 1,849,102 

2017 453,057 215,100 654,513 486,587 36,424 1,845,681 

20t8 451,502 209,700 637,313 486,588 36,424 1,821,527 

20t9 454,509 204,300 455,213 486,587 36,423 1,637,032 

Thereafter 2,345,044 763,200 490,920 4,054,896 582,090 8,236,150 

Total $ 4,593,138 $ 1,838,700 $ 3,547,685 $ 6,487,833 $ 727,784 $ 17,195,140 

The capital leases, shown in Table 6 below, are comprised of three trash knuckle boom trucks, 
three garbage rear loaders and one garbage front loader for the Garbage/Sanitation Department, 
a Ferrara RescuelPumper Truck and an E·One 75' Aerial Truck for the Fire Department. 

Table 6 

Annual Cash Demand for Capital Leases 


Garbage Trucks Fire Trucks 

FYE Capital Lease Capital Lease TOTAL 

2015 $ 109,298 $ 112,337 $ 221,635 

2016 112,337 112,337 
2017 112,337 112,337 
2018 112,337 112,337 
2019 75,575 75,575 
Thereafter 226,724 226,724 
Total $ 109,298 $ 751,647 $ 860,945 

The compensated absences liability identified in Table 4 refers to the balance of what has been 
earned as a termination benefit that will be paid over time as people leave or retire. Under 
GAAP reporting, this liability must be reported as compensated absences at year-end due to the 
language in our personnel policies to the effect that the employee has "earned" the 
compensation. The City does not provide a specific budget for this portion of the liability. 
These amounts are paid, when due, from the department's annual personal services budget. 

Additional information on the City of Greenwood's long-term debt can be found in Note 3 on 
pages 53-61. 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


Current Financial Related Activities 
The City of Greenwood is financially stable. The City is committed to maintaining that financial 
stability without substantial tax or fee increases, when possible. The City maintains an excellent 
system of financial planning, budgeting, and internal financial controls. The City will continue 
its sound fiscal management in an attempt to meet the challenges of the future. 

Milwaukee Electric Tool Corporation has continued to grow. The industry-leading manufacturer 
and marketer of heavy-duty, portable electric power tools and accessories committed to an $18 
million expansion over 3 years. 

Cannon Chrysler is developing 19 acres on Highway 82 West, investing over 2.4 million dollars 
into a high-quality commercial retail automobile dealership development that offers Greenwood 
an opportunity to have Chrysler, Dodge, Jeep and Ram vehicle sales, service, and parts available 
in the local economy. The City intends to issue Tax Increment Financing (TIF) bonds in an 
amount not to exceed $1,000,000 to assist in that development. 

C3 Designs will design and manufacture high performance homes and specialty structures. This 
operation will occupy a 72,000 square foot facility located in our Greenwood-Leflore Industrial 
Park. 

The Baptist Town Community Revitalization project is in progress. Over $700,000 has been 
invested in Phase 1. This phase includes housing rehabilitation, infrastructure, a community 
center and placing the first 11 Katrina cottages in the Baptist Town Community. 

In fiscal year 2015, the City entered into a capital lease for the purchase of five (5) new 2015 
Ford Explorers. The purchase of these police vehicles provides for a better service in patrolling 
the City's streets. Payments on this loan began in March, 2015. In addition the City plans to enter 
into another capital lease for the purchase of five (5) garbage trucks and four (4) trash trucks as 
soon as the trash trucks are delivered. The purchase of these trucks provides for a more efficient 
service in picking up the City's trash and garbage. 

Our economy was also stimulated by the recent issuance of $3 million in bonds. The bond funds 
will be used to renovate the Police Department. 

In March 2015, the City issued G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, to provide funds for the 
advance refunding of the current 2005 and 2006 G.O. Bonds, as well as the payment of the 
associated bond issuance costs. A total of$2,155,000 was received from the 2015 bond issuance 
and will pay down the 2005 and 2006 bonds outstanding balances to $70,000 and $95,000, 
respectively. 

In May 2015, the City issued Tax Increment Financing (TIF) bonds in the amount of $265,000 to 
assist in the development of the Landing Retail Center, a commercial property that operates as a 
convenience store and truck fueling station. 

The City entered into an agreement for a state revolving fund loan to significantly upgrade the 
wastewater treatment plant which was required by EPA. This $39 million project began in fiscal 
year 2012 and is now complete. Sewer rates were increased to meet future loan obligations. 
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City of Greenwood 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 


Many positive things are happening by using multiple funding sources and, all the while, these 
long overdue projects are still able to be undertaken with little or no impact to the City's bottom 
line. City officials would like to reassure its constituents that City Hall is working hard to make 
sure Greenwood gets the most bang for its buck and that Greenwood is going to continually 
strive to maintain its status as the crown jewel of the Mississippi delta. 

Contacting the City's Finance Department 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors, and investors with a 
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the funds it 
receives. Questions about this report or requests for additional information should be made to the 
City Clerk, City of Greenwood, Mississippi, at 662-453-2246. 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Statement of Net Position 


September 30, 2014 


I 
Prima!} Government 

governmental Buslness-llllle 
Activities Activities Total Coml1onent Units 

ASSETS 
Cash and equivalents $ 4,227,284 $ 7,617,733 $ 11,845,017 $ 512,546 
Inllestments 133,963 476,117 610,080 
Receivablesa Accou n ts, net 4,325,171 4,325,171 19,354 

Property taxes 4,988,776 4,986,776 
Other 178,475 443,064 621,559 100 

Internal balances (53,257) 53,257 
i"~ Due from other gOllemmental agencies 677,763 127,835 1,005,598 66,681
~" 
_f;, I nllentones 932,557 932,557t Prepaids 26,854 123,290 150,144 7,698 

Other long-term receivables 7,732 7,732 
Restricted assets 

i Cash and cash equivalents 12,934,743 12,934,743 10,000 
.' investments 2,573,863 2,573,883 

interest receivable 3,183 3,183 

l 
Capital assets 

Land 3,487,721 451,020 3,938,741 
Infrastructure 16,243,303 15,320,606 31,563,909 
Buildings and improvements 4,870,548 193,751 5,064,299 31,952 
Equipment and furniture 331,076 149,420 480,496 62,245 
Mobile equipment 1,443,582 559,999 2,003,581 1,546 

I. 
~., Library books and matenals 126,830 

Electric and water production plant 11,620,677 11,820,677 
Electric and water distribution plant 30,001,677 30,001,677 
Electric and water general plant 2,815,154 2,815,154 
Construction in progress 323,455 31,444,491 31,767,946 

1 Total assets 37,079,543 122,375,380 159,454,923 836,952 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 389,633 3,280,334 3,669,967 38,157 
Due to other govemmental agencies 10,883 48,652 59,535 
Other payables 100,496 1,317 101,813~ Sales tax payable 67,570 67,570II Unearned grant rellenue 3,063,279 3,063,279 
Deferred revenue 24,865 24.865 
Payable from restricted assets 

1 Revenue bonds payable 585,000 585.000 
".~. Customer deposits 1,109,917 1.109,917 

Unemployment compensation allowance 24.000 24,000 
Group medical insurance claims payable 18,889 18,889 

Long-tenn liabilities ~!: Due within one year!i1i 
Bonds, capltaileases and contracts 576,875 649,063 1,425,938 
Accrued Interest 53,210 15,117 66,327 
Accrued compensated absences 248,988 118,203 367,191 25,853 

•t 
Due In more than one year 

Accrued compensated absences 281,242 281.242 21,070 

.. 
Bonds, capital leases and contracts 5,462,557 36,321,442 41,783,999 

Total liabUities 6,867,507 45,784,025 52,651,532 85,080 

l DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 4,880,322 4,880,322 
Bond premium 40.117 40,117 

Total deferred inftows of resources 4,880,322 40,117 4,920,439 

,,~, 

~,.. NET POSITION 
i'iIi' Net inllestment in capital assets 20,607,043 55,026,291 75,633,334 243,536.. Restricted for: 

Capital projects 13,028 13,028 
Debt service 983,613 983,613 

Ii 
ff;, Community development projects 111,888 111,888 

Other Purposes 119,309 119,309 
Purchase of genealogy materials 5,955 
Production of income to purchase books' 10,000 
Miss State unemployment revolving fund 4,628 

Y' 
?,~ " Standards-based library automation system 45.338 

Ii Unrestricted 3,496,833 21,524,947 25,021,780 444,415 
Total net position $ 25,331,714 $ 761551,238 $ 101 

1
882,952 $ 753,872 

~,

Ii. 

I See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 14 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Statement of Activities 


For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 
 I 
Program Revenues 
OQeratlng Grants ~aQltal ~[ants ICharges for !ill!.. !ill!.. 

Functions/Programs EXQenaes ~ Cgntrlbutlons Contrlbutlo[!s 
Primary government 

Governmental Activities 
General Government $ 1,475,791 $ 152,437 $ $ IPublic Safety 7,416,035 422,267 289,688 15,369 

Public Works 2,167,925 115,221 46,877 58,878 

Health, Welfare and Sanitation 16,922 23,027 

Culture and Recreation 464,005 28,121 3,358 34,835 

Economic Development & Assistance 96,405 1,014 398,707 
 I
Miscellaneous Approprialions 619,912 

Interest on long-term debt 224,520 302,301 


Total gOliernmental activities 12,503,515 1,020,367 363,964 507?89 


Business-type activities I
Sewer 2,169,960 3,730,734 343,893 

Solid Waste 1,955,259 1,840,378 2,438 

Unemployment Compensation 13,610 

ElectriclWater 29,700,842 32,224,917 


Total business-type activities 33,639,671 37,796,029 346,331 I 
Total primary gOliernment $ 46,343,186 $ 38,616,396 $ 363,964 $ 854,120 

Component Units 
Tourism Commission $ 493,063 $ $ $ 
Public library 529,624 14,208 121,627 

Total component units $ 1,022,707 $ 14,208 $ 121,827 $ I 
General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Property taxes, levied for specific purposes I 
Franch ise taxes 

Sales taxes 

Tourism sales tax 


Payments from the city and county j
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Misoellaneous 
Gain (loss) on disposal and sale of assets 
Transfers 

Tolal general revenues, special ilems, and transfers I 
Change In net position 

Net position - beginning 
Net position - ending I 

I 

I 


)I 
d 
I 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Net jExE!ense! Revenue and Changes In Net Position 
Prima!l Government 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-~~e 
Activities Total Component Units 

$ (1,323,354) 
(6,690,691) 
(1,966,949) 

6,105 
(397,691) 
303,316 

(619,912) 
77,781 

(10,611,395) 

$ (1,323,354) 
(6,690,691) 
(1,966,949) 

6,105 
(397,691) 
303,316 

(619,912) 
77,781 

(10,611 ,395) 

(10,611,395) 

$ 1,904,667 
(112,443) 

(13,610) 
2,524,075 
4,302,689 
4,302,689 

1,904,667 
(112,443) 

(13,610) 
2,524,075 
4,302,689 

(6,308,706) 

$ (493,083) 
(393,589) 
(886,672) 

4,302,990 
433,755 
311,285 

4,450,269 

193,363 
6,564 32,380 

4,302,990 
433,755 
311,285 

4,450,269 

193,363 
38,944 

450,874 
368,835 

3,495 
1,379 

467 
1,298,232 

10,996,925 

(6,108) 
(1,298,2321 
11,271,9601 

(5,641) 

824,583 

i 
385,530 3,030,729 3,416,259 (62,089) 

24,946,184 73,520,509 98,466,693 815,961 
$ 25,331,714 $ 76,551,238 $ 101,882,952 $ 753,872 

l 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
September 30, 2014 

Other 
Governmental 

General Fund Funds 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,122,826 $ 1,757,927 
Investments 133,963 
Property taxes receivable, net 4,540,876 447,900 
Other receivables 18,730 
Intergovernmental receivables 727,295 150,468 
Due from other funds 234,749 1,440 

Total assets $ 7,778,439 $ 2,357,735 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 200,277 $ 41,575 
Due to other funds 87,578 147,171 
Deferred revenue 24,865 
Other accrued expenses 146,893 888 
Other payables 20,878 4,024 

Total liabilities 455,626 218,523 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 4,442,014 438,308 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 1,181,843 
Committed 
Assigned 519,061 
Unassigned 2,880,799 

Total fund balances 2,880,799 1,700,904 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balances $ 7,778,439 $ 2,357,735 

Total 

Governmental 


Funds 


$ 3,880,753 
133,963 

4,988,776 
18,730 

877,763 
236,189 

$ 

$ 

10,136,174 

241,852 
234,749 

24,865 
147,781 
24,902 

674,149 

4,880,322 

1,181,843 

519,061 
2,880,799 
4,581,703 

$ 10,136,174 

See accomoanvina notes to the financial statements. 17 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net 


Position 

September 30, 2014 


Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 4,581,703 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position are different because: 

.. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in this fund financial 
statement but are reported in the governmental activities of the 
Statement of Net Position 26,699,685 

Prepaid expenses used in governmental activities are not current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in this fund financial 
statement but are reported in the governmental activities of the 
Statement of Net Position 26,854 

L.,.·.·.,..•·. 

Certain other long-term assets are not available to pay current period 
expenditures and, therefore, are not reported in this fund financial 
statement but are reported in the governmental activities of the 
Statement of Net Position 159,745 

The assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds are not 
included in the fund financial statement but are included in the 
governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position 205,357 

Some liabilities, (such as Deferred Revenues, Notes Payable, Capital 
Leases, Contracts Payable, Long-term Compensated Absences, and 
Bonds Payable), are not due and payable in the current period and are 
not included in the fund financial statement but are included in the 
governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position (6,341,630) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position $ 25,331,714 ============= 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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City of Greenwood. Mississippi 


Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 


For the Year Ended September 30.2014 


Other Total " 
Governmental GovernmentalL 

General Fund Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

k Property taxes $ 4,302,990 $ 431,223 $ 4,734,213 
General sales tax 4,450,269 4,450,269 
Fees and fines 315,901 42,891 358,792 

r 
~ 

Licenses and permits 400,201 400,201, Intergovernmental 315.367 838,295 1,153,662 
Charges for services 15.925 (33.782) (17,857) 
Investment earnings 4.028 2,076 6,104 

•~' Miscellaneous 104,788 343,619 448,407 
Total revenues 9,909,469 1,624,322 11,533,791 

1 EXPENDITURES ..~. Current: 
General government 1,464,617 1,464,617 
Public safety 6,785,830 335,415 7,121,245 

L Public works 1,567,070 41,934 1,609,004 
,~, 

Health and welfare 16,922 16,922 
Culture and recreation 382,864 53,776 436,640 
Miscellaneous appropriations 547,822 72,090 619,912

I.. Economic development and assistance 2,391 2,391 
Debt Service: 

f; Principal 59,619 509,303 568,922 
~. Interest and other charges 15,956 208,564 224,520 

Capital Outlay 167,202 718,164 885,366 
Total Expenditures 10,990,980 1,958,559 12,949,539 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

, 
&.. expenditures (1,081,511) (334,237) (1,415,748) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
i~~ 

Sale of real estate 168,410 168,410I- Sale of personal property 19,824 19,824 
Transfers in 1,331,829 461,949 1,793,778 
Transfers out ~112,366~ ~383,1821 {495,548lL Total other financing sources and uses 1,239,287 247,177 1,486,464 

Net change in fund balances 157,776 (87,060) 70,716 
~ 

Fund balances - beginning 2,723,023 1,787,964 4,510,987I. Fund balances - ending $ 2,880,799 $ 1,700,904 $ 4,581,703 

~-r. 

I. 

..;-. 
f' 

i¢: 

.'L 
~ See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 19
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of 


Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended September 30,2014 


Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ 70,716 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because 
such outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of 
Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense. The outlay is 
allocated over the assets' estimated useful lives as depreciation expense for 
the period. 
This is the amount by which capital outlays $885,366 exceeded depreciation 
$957,734 in the current period. (72.368) 

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from sale of an 
asset as revenue because it provides current financial resources. In contrast, 
the Statement of Activities reports only the gain (loss) on the sale or disposal of 
the assets. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund 
balance by the cost of the asset sold or disposed. (187,767) 

Governmental funds do not present revenues that are not available to pay 
current obligations. In contrast, such revenues are reported in the Statement of 
Activities when earned. (4,917) 

Governmental funds report bond and capital lease proceeds as current 
financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of Activities treats such issuance 
of debt as a liability. Governmental funds report repayment of bond and capital 
lease principal as an expenditure. In contrast, the Statement of Activities treats 
such repayments as a reduction in long-term liabilities. This is the amount by 
which proceeds exceeded repayments. 568.922 

Some expenditures reported in the Governmental funds are not expenses of 
the current period and are reported as prepayments in the Statement of 
Activities: 

Prepaid insurance not reflected in the Governmental Funds 1,712 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use 
of current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 

Accrued interest not reflected on Governmental funds (3,943) 
Accrued compensated absences not reflected in the Governmental funds 14.215 

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain 
activities, such as employee benefits to individual funds. The net revenue 
(expense) of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. (1,040} 

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 385,530 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Budget and Actual (with Variances, 

General Fund 


For the year ended September 30,2014 
 I 
Variance with 

&:!II!!I Amounts, Rnal Budget· 
BudgetalY Basis 

~", ~ 
Bu!!geted Amounts I~!" !jgte 61 /Negatlve1 

~ flo.!! I
REVENUES 

Property taxes $ 4,416,361 $ 4,416,361 $ 4.264.257 $ (132.104) 

Fees end lines 468.762 468,762 315.901 (152.861) 

Licenses and permits 390.260 390,260 399.217 8.957 

IntergoYemmenta! 4,823,257 4,823,257 4,711,874 (111.383) 

Charges for services 27.200 27,200 15,300 (ll,goo) 
 I 
Investment earnings 7,000 7,000 4,028 (2.972) 
Miscellaneous 219,600 219,600 124,613 (94,987) 

T0181 revenues 10,352,440 10,352,440 9,855,190 (497,2501 

EXPENDITURES I
General government 

SuperviSion and finance 

Personal services 593,560 588,560 564,589 3,971 

Supplies 5,927 10,027 8,936 1,091 

Other services and charges 309.825 255,679 242,648 12.631 

Capital outlay 2,669 2,669 2,590 79 
 I 

City clerk's office 
Personal services 208,266 204,933 197,339 7,594 
Supplies 10.500 12,500 10,486 2,014 

Ii" 
Other services and charges 41,210 42,065 39,919 2.086 
Capital outlay 200 140 139 1 I 

City hall building maintenance 

Supplies 9,000 21.851 17,781 4,010 

Other services and charges 238,000 245,850 241,910 3,940 

Capital outlay 55,465 55,465 


Personnel office IPersonal services 109,127 109,140 106,441 2.699 

Supplies 2,200 2,500 1.935 565 

Other services and charges 9,578 9,518 5,695 3.883 

Capital outlay 1,000 987 298 669 


Public safety 

Police department 
 I 

Personal services 3,297,196 3,331,076 2,997,650 333,426 

Supplies 294.120 239,620 199,053 40,567 

Other services and charges 434,460 479,151 429,293 ., 49,658 

Capital outlay 6,000 25,040 18,376 6,862 

Qebl seNice 19,85:2 5,052 4,913 139 
 I

Municipal court 

Personal services 112,7:28 112.602 109,864 2,938 

Supplies 4,241 4,241 2,876 1.365 

Other services and charges 15,264 15,210 11,806 3.404 


Fire departm ent 

Personal services 2.616,915 2,529,415 2,435,572 93,643 
 I 
Supplies 72,700 125.400 117,251 6,149 
Other aervices and charges 101,900 137,627 124,160 13,467 
Capital outlay 13,500 25,500 24.190 1,310 
Debl service 80,679 77.203 76.744 459 f 

Inspection dl\lislon I
Personal services 213,723 213,723 212,691 1,032 

Supplies 8,100 8,100 5.574 2,526 

Other services and charges 5,350 6,662 5,616 866 

Capital outlay 1,000 992 533 459 

Debt service 1,404 360 351 9 


Public works I 
Engineering division 

Personal service. 110,461 110,461 101,534 8,921 
Supplies 37,743 37.510 35,303 2.207 .. 
Other services and charges 11,000 11.396 6.597 2,799 
Capital oullay 500 1,033 683 150 I 
Debt service 936 240 234 6 

Street division 

Personal services 526,159 417,459 448,387 29,072 

Supplies 261,665 244.965 222,948 22,017 

Other services and charges 396,500 401,604 420,369 (18,785) 
 I
Capital outlay 1,000 11,500 90,275 (78,175) 

Debt seNiee 8,669 2,265 2,222 63 


I 

I 


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 21 I 



Budgeted Amounts 

EXPENDITURES (Contfnuedl 
Equipmenl maintenance dMsion 


Personal sel'llices 

Supplies 

Other swces and charges 

Capital outlay 

Debt sel'llice 


Inventory control division 

Personal sel'llices 

Supplies 

Other swees and charges 

Capital outlay 

Debt sel'llice 


Culture and recreation 
Park division recreation 


Personal sel'llices 

Supplies 

Other sel'llices and charges 

Capital outlay 


Park division maintenance 

Personal sel'llices 

Supplies 

Other sel'llices and charges 

Capital outlay 

Debt sel'llice 


Senior citizens center 

Supplies 

Other sel'llices and charges 

Capital outlay 


Miscellaneous appropriations 
Civil defense 
Main Street project 
Delta Streets 
Boys 8. Girls Club Appropriations 
Our House Appropriations 
Greenwood Montoring Group 
Armory 
Library 
Industrial Board 
Humane Society 
Cham bar of Commerce-Christmas decorations 
Cemetery 
Red Cross 
Other utility appropriations 
Airport 
Drug Court 
Fannie Lou Hammer 
Community Kitchen 
Community Band 
Teach for America 
Chamber of Commerce-Fourth of July 
Cotlonlandia 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (defiCiency) of ravenues owr 
expenditures 11,166,843) 11,204,949) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USeS, 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

1,261,643 
175,000) 

1,166,643 

1,306,958 
1116,481) 

1,190,477 

Net change in fund balances 
Budgetary fund balance - beginning 
Budgetary fund balance - ending $ 

Variance with 
Actual Amounts, 
Budgeta[ll Basis 

(See Note Al 

Final Budget ­
Positive 

(Negative] 

205,664 
30,974 
34,214 

48,339 
7,416 
1,225 

585 16 

36,339 
10,669 

348 

117 

894 
1,231 

300 
200 

3 

6,495 
19,395 

1,345 

1,880 
1,969 

155 
210 

241,372 
59,028 
45,256 

890 
819 

8,216 
3,672 
1,793 

140 
23 

3,498 
4,182 

802 
2,518 

22,113 
14,500 
2,500 

10,000 
8.500 
5,000 
7,113 

197,665 
100,200 

6,500 
7,500 
4,470 
3,500 

37,129 
96,456 

2,500 
2,500 
5,000 

5,000 
7,500 

11,000 
10,662,354 

987 
4,152 
7,600 

5,530 

871 

1,000 

{1,027, I64l 177,765 

1,325,333 18,375 
1102,140l 

1,223,193 

196,029 210,501 
1,496,090 1,461,618 

$ 1,692,119 I> 1,692,119 

Qrigl!!i!! 

259,703 
29,690 
32,000 

500 
2,340 

37,233 
11,900 

300 
200 
468 

8,375 
12,500 
6,000 

210 

249,588 
60,200 
43,415 

1,030 
3,276 

4,300 
6,700 

22,113 
14,500 

2,500 
10,000 
8,500 
5,000 
8,100 

201,637 
106,000 

6,500 
7,500 

10,000 
3,500 

38,000 
96,456 

2,500 
2,500 
5,000 
1,000 
5,000 
2,500 

11,000 
11,539,083 

Final 

254,003 
38,390 
35,439 

601 

37,233 
11,900 

648 
200 
120 

8,375 
21,364 

1,500 
210 

249,588 
62,700 
47,049 

1,030 
842 

4,300 
6,700 

22,113 
14,500 

2,500 
10,000 

6,500 
5,000 
8,100 

201,637 
108,000 

6,500 
7,500 

10,000 
3.500 

36,000 
96,456 

2,500 
2,500 
5,000 
1,000 
5,000 
7,500 

11,000 
11,557,369 

L 
l See accompanying notes to the financial statements, 22 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Note A to Budgetary Comparison Schedule 


Gener al Fund 

For the year ended September 30, 2014 


An explanation of the differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and revenues and expenditures determined in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles follows" 

Sourcesllnflows of resourCes: 
Actuat amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetary comparison 

schedule $ 9,855,190 
Differences - budget to GAAP: 
Amounts due from the county for real, auto and mobile home ad valorem at year end are 

revenues for financial reporting purposes 1B,733 
Amount due to the state for sales tax at year end is revenue for financial reporting 

purposes 47,461 
Amount due to the state for liquor license at year end is revenue for financial reporting 

purposes 6,300 
Amounts due from franchisees at year end is revenue for financial reporting purposes 1,609 
Proceeds for sale of personal property reported as other financing sources on the statement of re\ll!nues, 

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - gO\ll!mmental funds (19,624) 

Total re\ll!nues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances - gO\ll!mmental funds ,,;$:b=;;9.,;,909;,;;;;.,,4B;,;;;;9= 

Usesioutflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary 

campanson schedule $ 10,882,354 
Differences - budget to GAAP: 
The City does not record accrued salaries for budgetary reporting purposes, only 

for the modified accrual basis 43,642 
The City does not record the appropriation from Greenwood Utilities for the City employee picnic, 

only for the modified accrual basis 6,497 
The City did not record an expenditure for communications equipment against the budget baSiS, 

but for the modified accrual basis, the equipment had been ptaced in serl/ice 
The City reversed a prior year payable on the modified accrual basis but not for the 

budgetary basis (1,665) 
The City does not record a payable if it is incurred on or before September 30th and paid after 

October 30tt1 to( the budgetary basis, only for the modified accrual basis 68,996 
The City did not remove inpaction slickers from inventory and record as an expense 

on the budgetary baSiS, only for the modificed accrual basis 
The City recorded the cemetery appropriation as an appropriation in the budgetary 

process, but for the modified accrual basis, the appropriation was an operating transfer to 
the cemetery fund (8,844) 

Total expenditures as reported on the statem ent of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances - governmental funds =$:b=1=0""990=,,,,9=8=0= 

L See accompanymg noles to the financial statements" 23 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Statement of Net Position 


Proprietary Funds 

September 3D, 2014 


Business-t~E!e Activities - Enterl!rise Funds 

L 
Governmental 

Activities ­
Sewage Greenwood Other Entererlse Internal Service 

Enter!!rise Fund "'Iilllles Fund FundEYn.!!! Total 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,283,770 $ 5,032,408 $ 301,552 $ 7,617,730 $ 346,534
fi Investments 476,117 476,117 

Accounts receivable, net 4,325,171 4,325,171 21,918 
Due from other funds 782,201 107,520 406,281 1,296,002 
Due from other governments 19,772 108.063 127,835 
Other receivables 443,084 443,084 
Inventories 932.557 932.557 
Prepaid expenses 16,115 96,651 10,527 123,293 

L 

Total current assets 3.101,858 11.521,571 718,360 15,341,789 368,452 
Non-current assets: 

Other long-Ierm receivables 7,732 7.732 
~. Restricted Assets: 

Gash and cash equivalents 7,823.625 5.111,118 12,934,743 

" •i. 

i. 
I~vestments 2,573.883 2.573,883 
Interest receivable 3,183 3,183 

Capital Assets: 
Land and improvements 81,500 369,520 451.020 

: ~0:;i, Ellectric and water production plant 11,820,677 11,820,677 

t 

ElectriC and water distribution plant 30,001,677 30,001.677 
Electric and water general plant 2,815,154 2,815,154 
Infrastructure 20,130,644 20,130,644 

'% Construction in progress 30,869,921 574,570 31,444,491 
Eluildings 781,079 781,079 

, '-~A-

Mobile equipment 612,075 1.981,360 2,593,435 
Other equipment and furniture 198,652 114,377 313,029 

Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,968,768! {I ,625,643) (7,594,411) 


, Tolal non-current assets 54,528,728 53,277,514 470,094 108,276,336 
~. Total assets 57,630,586 64,799,085 1,188,454 123,618,125 368,452 

II 
LIABILITIES 
Curren! Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 1,378,019 1,793,923 66,008 3,237,950 75,594
i:,~~ Salaries payable 9,664 21,406 11,315 42,385
,?J:A> 

Accrued interest payable 15,117 15,117iii 
Due to other funds 26,291 1,271,151 1,297,442 
Payable to other governments 48,652 48,652 
Sal$s tax payable 67,570 67,570 
Other payables 1,317 1,317 
Accrued compensated absences 24,589 71,157 22,457 118,203 
Unearned granl rellenue 3,063,279 3,063,279 
Capital lease obligations 107,780 107,780 
State rellolliing loans payable 652,334 88,949 741,283 

L Total currenlliabilities 5,169,293 3,364,125 207,560 8,740,978 
Currer1l Liabililies Payable from Restricted Assets: 

I 
Revenue bonds payable 585,000 585,000 
Customer deposits 1,109,917 1,109,917 
Unemployment compensation allowance 24,000 24,000 
Group medical ins Claims payable 18,889 18,889 

,'/: Tolal current liabilities payable from 
restricted assets 585,000 1,152,806 1,737,806 

Non·currenlliabillties: 
Acorued compensated absences 281,242 281,242 
Capilallease obligations I:i 
Re~enue bonds 2,725,000 2,725,000.. State revolving loans payable 33,592,766 3,675 33,596,441 

TOlal non-current liabilities 36,317,766 284,917 36,602,683 
Tolalliabilities 42,072,059 4,801,848 207,560 47.081,467 

~;:\ DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
iii Bond Premium 40,117 

Tolal deferred Inflows of resources 40,117 

NET POSITION 
~-' Net investment in capital assets 9,175,003 45,488,974 362,314 55.026,291 

Unrestricted 6,343,407 14,508,263 618,580 21,470,250 292,858 
Total net position $ 15,518,410 $ 59,997,237 $ 980,894 $ 76,496,541 $ 292,858 

.. 
~.. 
l 
" 1: See accomp'1nying notes to the financial statements. 24 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change. In Fund Net Postlon 


Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 


Buslne5S-~ee Activities - Entererlse Funds 

GOX!!Dmental 

lJ,
:?-i:;.. Sewage 

En~rll[ll!e Fund 
Gr!!!!n!l:ood 

Ullllties Fund 
Qth![ Entererlse 

flul!!.! I2.l!I 

activitI!! -
loter"al §ervlce 

flm.!t 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Charge$ for services 
Reinsurance funds 

$ 3,721,559 $ 31,831,483 $ 1,816,441 $ 37,369,463 $ 1,242,134 
34,073 

Miscellaneous 9,175 393,434 23,937 426,546 2,903 
Total operaling revenues 3,730,734 32,224,917 1,840,378 37,796,029 1,279,110 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
L~\ Personal services 753,971 936,577 1,690,546 
~S\>~.. Contractual services 

Other supplies and expenses 
494,362 
123,402 

646,651 
246,157 

1,141,013 
369,559 

Repairs and maintenance 4,134 4,134 
Insurance claims and expenseS 1,261,092 

~i 
iii).. Generating expenses 

Distrib~tlon expenses 
General and administration expenses 

20,355,169 
1,764,294 
3,700,930 

20,355,169 
1,764,294 
3,700,930 

Customer account expenses 577,490 577.490 
Production expenses 395,065 395,065 

~t~, 
it 

Sales expenses 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 
Operating income (loss) 

623,797 
1,995,532 
1,735,202 

11,998 
2,651,683 

29.456,629 
2,768,288 

134,786 
1,966,305 
I127,927l 

11,996 
3,410,266 

33,420,466 
4,375,563 

1,281,092 
(1,962) 

NON-OPI!RATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
~, Interest and Investment revenue 6,285 22,155.. Interest expense (179,437) 


Amortilalion of bond premium(dlscount) 5,176 

Expen$es paid for the city (41,626) 

Utillty appropriations to Greenwood Public Schools (191,361) 

Utility appropriations to GreenWOod-Leflore Industrial 

Board lind others (11,224) 

Gain (lOSS) on disposal and sale of equipment (13,666) 27,929 

Miscellaneous revenue 


1,941 
(331) 

(20,351) 
2,436 

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (179,662) !194,129) (16,303l;jt Income (105s) before contributions and transfers 1,555,540 2,574,159 (144,230)
J;;~ 

Capital & operating grants and contributions 343,893• Transfers In 202,427 97,023 
Transfers out !1,597,660) 

Change In net position 976,479 (47,207) 
~.. Total net 110sltlon - beginning 59,020,756 1,026,101

II Total net POSition - ending $ 59,997,237 $ 96°1694 

Change In net pOSition, per above 
Internal service funds are used by management to 
charge the costs of certain activities to Individual funds. 
The net revenue (expense) of certain Internal service 
funds Is reported with Business Activities. 

Change In Business-Type Activities In Net POSition per Government-Wide Financial Statements 

32,381 460 
(179,766) 

5,176 
(41,628) 

(191,361) 

(11,224) 
(6,108) 
2,438 

(390,0941 
3,985,469 

460 
(1,522) 

343,693 
299,450 

(1,597,6601 
3,031,132 (1,522) 

73,465,409 294,360 

! 76,4961541 $ 292,656 

$ 3,031,132 

(403) 

$ 3,030,729 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
25 
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City of Greenwood, Mlssl ..lppl 

Statement of Cash Flows I 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 

auslne"'~l!e Activities· Entererlse Funds 
~o~e!l!mental I 

61l11:tl tles· 
Q[!!eQwS!od Other Entemrlse I.n!2!n!!.. 

Sewage Enterprise Fund Utilities Fund .E!!ruti Service Fund Im.!I
Cuh flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers and users $ 3,677,548 $ 30,325,673 $ 1,787,406 $ 35,790,627 $ IReceipts from Greenwood Public Schools 500,895 500,895 
Receipts from the Greenwood·Leflore tndustrial Board and 

other agencies 203,794 
 203,794 

Receipts from other funds 520,372 520,372 

Receipts from Inlerfund services provided 1,242,133 

Receipts from other governments 2,019,342 
 I2,019,342 67,645 

Receipts for sewer & solid wasle coliecUons for others 5,693,259 5,693,259 

Receipts from customer meter deposlls 174,685 174,685 

Receipts from other revenue 9,175 635,935 23,937 669,047 2,903 

Payments for loss claims (13,610) (13,610) (1,285,726) 

Payments to suppliers for goods and services (3,369,463) (21.970.661) (922.450) (26,262.594) 
 I 
Payments to employees (747,700) (4.604.544) (924,534) (6,276,778) 

Payments to other governments 

Payments for sewer and solid waste collections for others (5,644,387) (5,644,367) 

Payments for customer meter deposit refunds (81,135) (81.135) 

Payments for Interfund services used 3,053 3,053 
 J 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating actlvlues 1,591,935 5,753,886 {49,251 l 7,296,570 26,953 

: 

Cash flows from noncapltat financing activities 
Transfers from other funds 202,427 97,023 299,450 
Transfers 10 Greenwood Public Schools (191,361) (191,361) ITransfers to the Greenwood-leflore Industrtal Board and 

other agencies (44,114) (44,114) 

Transfers to other funds (1,606,418l !1,606,416) 


Net cash provided by {used for) noncapltal finanCing :t; . 
activities 202,427 (1 ,841,893) 97,023 {1,542,443l I 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Acquisition and construction of capital a.set8 (21.646,757) (2,241,283) (132,757) (24,220,797) 
Proceeds from ssles of capital asseta/scrap metal 23,057 2,438 25,495 
Capital &. operating grants &. contrtbuUons received 48,018 46,016 I 
Loan proceeds 21,858,753 21,858,753 

Principal paid on capital debt (943,767) (149,711) (1,093,478) 

Interest paid on capital debt 

<i 
!200,9941 {331 l (201,325l 


Net cash provided (used) for capital and relaled 

financing activltles {I,086,749l ,2,218,226i {280,361l {3,585,3381 
 I 

Cash flows provided by (used for) Investing actlvltlea 
Purchase of Investment securities (3,050,000) (3,050,000) 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of Investment securities 8,800,000 8,800,000 
Interest on Investments 8,285 22,155 1,941 32,361 460 j

Net cash provided by (used for) investing actlvlHes 8,285 5,772,155 1,941 5,782,361 460 

Net Increase (deerease) In cash and cash equivalents 715,898 7,465,922 (230,648) 7,951.172 27,413 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,391,491 2,677,604 532,200 12,601,301 319,121 ICash and cash equivalents at enq of year $ 10,107,395 $ 10,143,526 $ 301,552 $ 20,552,473 $ 346,534 

I 
I 

j 


I 

I 


See accompanying notes 10 the finanCial statements, 
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Reconciliation of operating Income to net cash 
provided (p58d) by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustmel1t.s to reconcile Income (loss) from 
operations to net cash provided (used) by 
operating .ctivlties: 

Deprecletion expense 
Provisior for bad debts 
(Increase) decrease In accounts receivables, net 
(Increase) decrease In due from other governments 
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 
(Increase) decrease In other receivables 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
(InCrease) decrease in restricted group medical insurance 
claims rl>ceivable 
Increas. (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries & benelits payable 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
Increasll (decrease) in due to other governments 
Increesll (decrease) in collections for other governments 
Increasll (decrease) in sewer and solid waste collected for 
the cily 
IncreaSe (decrease) in other payables 
Increase (decrease) in sales tax payable 
IncreaSe (decrease) in restricted medical insurance claims 
payabla 

Total ,djustments 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

liiel!!age Ente(llrlse FY!l!.l 

! 1,735,202 

623,797 

2,019,342 
(44,011) 

(1,028) 

(2,750,691) 
2,638 

3,633 
3,053 

(143,267l 
$ 1,591,935 

g[l!enwood 
Ulillties Eund 

$ 2,768,288 

2,651,683 
153,032 

(476,212) 
7,628 
1,997 

272,877 
402,939 
(26,317) 

44,372 
(95,268) 
(24,100) 
93,550 

(34,569) 
2,489 

(23,610) 
605 

69,993 
(10,053) 

1,825 

!27,147l 
2,985,598 

$ 5,753,886 

Qther Enterl!rlse 

f.IIru!l 

$ p27,927) 

134,786 

50,000 
(29,035) 

(471) 

(25,037) 
2,580 

(4,147) 
(50,000) 

78,676 
$ (49,251) 

$ 

$ 

~ 

4,375,563 

3,410,266 
153,032 

(476,212) 
2,076,970 

(71,049) 
272.877 
402,939 
(27,816) 

44,372 
(2,870,996) 

(18,978) 
93,550 

(35,103) 
(44,458) 
(23,610) 

605 

69,993 
(10,053) 

1,825 

(27,147l 
2,921,007 
7,296,570 

GQvernmental 
Activities -

Inlemal 
§~O!lce fund 

$ (1,982l 

33,572 

(4,637) 

28,935 
$ 26,953 

Noncash Investing, capital and financing activltl.s: 
During the year, Greenwood Utilities and the Sewage Enterprise Fund did not receive any noncash capital contributions from developers 

conSisting of water and electric distribution and sewer distribution infrastructure. 

Reconciliation of total cash and cuh Investments: 
Currenl assets - ca sh and cash investments 
Restricted assets - cash and cash investments 

Total cash and cash investments 

$ 2,283,770 
7,823,625 

$ 10,107,395 

$ 5,032,408 
5,111,118 

$ 10,143,526 

$ 301,552 

$ 301 1552 $ 

7,617,730 
12,934,743 
20

1
552,473 

$ 346,534 

$ 346,534 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
27 
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City of Greenwood, Mississippi 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
September 30, 2014 

~.:..~'..'.;.. 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Property taxes receivable 

Total assets 

AGENCY FUNDS 

$ 337,487 
6,067,260 

$ 6,404,747 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments 
Accrued payroll taxes and benefits payable 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 
Other liabilities 

$ 181,552 
152,335 

6,067,260 
3,600 

Total liabilities $ 6,404,747 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 28 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. 	 GENERAL STATEMENT 

The City of Greenwood, Mississippi, (the City) is incorporated under the 
laws of the State of Mississippi. The City operates under the Mayor­
Council form of government with a full-time Mayor elected from the City 
at large and seven part-time Council members (City Council) elected from 
wards. The City's major operations include police and fire protection, 
public works, sewer and solid waste, parks and recreation and general 
administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates an 
electric and water utility system. 

The Mississippi Delta is an agricultural based economy. The economic 
stability of the taxpayers and utility customers of the City of Greenwood 
is significantly affected by this environment. 

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and 
local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and 
Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in 
GAAP and used by the City are discussed below. 

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City 
operations. The criteria for including organizations as component units 
within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of 
GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards, include whether: 

• 	 The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their 
own name) 

• 	 The City holds the corporate powers of the organization 

• 	 The City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 

• 	 The City is able to impose its will on the organization 
The organization has the potential to impose a financial• 
benefit/burden on the City 

• 	 There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the City of Greenwood has three 
component units as described below. 

Blended Component Unit: 

Greenwood Utilities is a municipal owned utility system, consisting of 
electrical and water production and distribution and is not legally 
separate from the City. The City of Greenwood holds the utilities' 
corporate powers, and the Mayor appoints all three Utility Commission 
members subject to council approval. 

Greenwood Utilities is presented as a proprietary fund type and operates 
on a September 30 fiscal year. Complete financial statements for the 
Greenwood Utilities may be obtained at its administrative office located 
at 101 Wright Place, Greenwood, Mississippi. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 

The Greenwood Tourism Commission was established by Chapter 813, local 
and private laws of 1989, of the Mississippi legislature and is legally 
separate from the City. The act has been extended and amended in 1994 
and 1999 by the Mississippi legislature. The Mississippi House of 
Representatives passed a new bill, House Bill 1569, which extends the 
funding of the Greenwood Tourism Commission until September 30, 2014. 
The Mayor appoints seven of the thirteen members of the Tourism 
Commission subject to Council approval. The City Council approves the 
Tourism's budget. The Greenwood Tourism Commission is presented as a 
governmental fund type. Complete financial statements for the Tourism 
Commission may be obtained at its administrative office located at 111 
Market Street, Greenwood, Mississippi. 

The Greenwood-Leflore Public Library was established under Section 39-3-8 
of the Mississippi Code of 1942, as annotated and is legally separate 
from the City. The Mayor appoints three of the five members on the 
library board subject to Council approval. The City Council makes annual 
appropriations along with county appropriations necessary to fund the 
library's operations. The Greenwood-Leflore Public Library is presented 
as a governmental fund type. Complete financial statements for the 
Greenwood-Leflore Public Library may be obtained at its administrative 
office located at 405 West Washington, Greenwood, Mississippi. 

The following organizations for which the City is not considered 
financially accountable have been excluded from the accompanying 
financial statements. Each agency is fiscally independent from the City, 
issues its own debt, approves its own budget, and sets its own rates and 
charges. The primary government has no authority to remove board 
members, designate management, or approve or modify rates. The City is 
not obligated in any manner for the debt issues of these agencies. 
Financial statements for these agencies can be obtained at the following 
addresses: 

• Greenwood Public Schools, 401 Howard Street, Greenwood, MS 38930 
• Greenwood-Leflore Airport, 502A Airport Road, Greenwood, MS 38930 
• Greenwood Housing Authority, 111 East Washington, Greenwood, MS 38930 
• Greenwood-Leflore Industrial Board, 402 Hwy 82, Greenwood, MS 38930 
• Greenwood-Leflore Hospital, 1401 River Road, Greenwood, MS 38930 

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS 

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide 
(reporting the City as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting 
the City's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or 
business type. The City's police and fire protection, parks and 
recreation, public works, and general administrative services are 
classified as governmental activities. The City's sewer, solid waste 
and electric and water utilities are classified as business-type 
activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental 
and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on the 
consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on the full accrual, 
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and 
receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The City's net 

Continued 30 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD 1 MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30 1 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

position is reported in three parts: net investment in capital assets, 
restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The City first 
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and 
net cost of each of the City's functions (police, fire, public works, 
etc.) and business-type activities. The Statement of Activities 

~. demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses for a given function, or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
Program revenues include 1) charges to applicants who use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function 
or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary 
(either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column 
reflects capital-specific grants. 

The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. 
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (police, 
fire, public works, etc.) or a business-type activity. Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead 
as general revenues. The net costs (by function or business-type 
activities) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or 
gas tax, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.). 

The City does not allocate indirect costs. 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an 
entity and the changes in the City's net position resulting from the 
current year's activities. Separate financial statements are provided 
for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary agency funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, 
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Major individual governmental funds 
and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
their fund financial statements. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non­
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds and of the City's 
internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. 
bperating expenses for the proprietary funds and internal service fund 
include the cost of sales and services, direct administrative services, 
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are 
the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Agency 
funds are used to report resources in a purely custodial capacity (assets 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

equal liabilities). So, agency funds cannot be said to have a measurement 
focus; however, they do use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize 
receivables and payables. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the 
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized 
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end 
of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and 
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise fees, intergovernmental revenues, and interest 
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when the City receives cash. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. 
It accounts for all financial transactions of the City, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Sewage Enterprise Fund - This fund accounts for activities associated 
with the provision of sewer services to individuals, organizations and 
other governmental units within and around the City. 

Greenwood Utilities Fund This fund accounts for activities 
associated with the provision of electric and water services to 
individuals, organizations and other governmental units within and 
around the City. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

The Internal Service fund is used to account for the financing of 
goods or services provided by one department or agency to 0 ther 
departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other 
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary funds: 

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 
capacity for others and therefore are not available to support City 
programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net 
position and is reported using accounting principles similar to 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

proprietary funds. The purpose of the City's agency funds is to 
collect and remit to the related organizations various revenues. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either 
the governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds 
by category are summarized into a single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth 
the minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and 
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor 
funds are combined in a separate column in the fund financial statements. 

The City's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary funds~ .... 	 financial statement. Because the principal users of the internal 
services are the City's governmental activities, the financial statements 
of the internal service fund are consolidated into the governmental 
activities column when presented in the government-wide financial 
statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is 
reported in the appropriate functional activity (police, fire, public 
works, sewer, solid waste, etc.). 

The City's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial 
statements by type (private purpose and agency). Since by definition 
these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local 
governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address 
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not 
incorporated into the government-wide statements. 

O. 	 ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET 
POSITION OR FUND EQUITY 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposit accounts, petty cash, 
and certificates of deposit with a maturity date generally within 90 days 
of the date acquired by the City. Collateral, as further discussed in 
Note 3, is pledged by the various financial institutions to secure City 
funds. 

2. Receivables 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, 
are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be 
uncollectible. 

Greenwood Utilities recognized revenue from meters read on a monthly 
cycle basis. Service that has been rendered from the latest date of each 
meter reading to month-end is estimated and accrued as unbilled revenue 
receivables. Unbilled revenue receivables represent $1,508,044 of total 
receivables at September 30, 2014. 

3. Investments 

Investments, consisting only of certificates of deposit with a maturity 
date greater than ninety days of the date acquired, are stated at cost. 
Statutes authorize the City to invest in U.S. Government obligations, 
U.S. Government agency obligations, State of Mississippi obligations, and 
obligations of a corporation of the U.S. government. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

Investments owned during the year were the same as those held at year­
end. 

4. 	 Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets consist of the following categories: 

• 	 The "customer deposits" account is used to segregate refundable 
customer deposits collected and held in trust until refunded or 
applied to the customer's account. 

• 	 The "unemployment compensation allowance" account is used to report 
resources set aside, as required by Mississippi Department of 
Employment Security, to meet unemployment compensation claims 
relating to the period as a reimbursable employer. 

• 	 The "capital improvement reserve" account is used to report 
resources set aside to replace units of property that have exceeded 
their useful life and for capital improvements to the system to 
meet growth. 

• 	 The "rate stabilization reserve" account is used to report 
resources set aside to allow gradual increases in rates rather than 
sharp increases. A sharp increase may be caused by unforeseen 
higher purchased power cost or a rapid increase in fuel cost. 

• 	 The "disaster and emergency reserve" account is used to report 
resources set aside to provide emergency repairs or replacements of 
capital assets damaged or destroyed by catastrophic acts or other 
disasters. 

• 	 The "litigation contingent reserve" account is used to assist in 
the funding of all litigation. 

• 	 The "capacity purchase reserve" account is used to assist in the 
funding of any future purchase of capacity or installation of 
generating facilities. 

• 	 The "Wright Station capacity reserve" is used to report resources 
for generation repowering or other generation improvements. 

• 	 The "Wright Station capital reserve" will be used for the 
refurbishing of Wright Station for generation purposes. 

• 	 The "group medical claims payable" account is used to finance 
medical claims under the utilities self-insurance medical plan. 

Sewage Enterprise restricted assets consist of a revenue fund and a debt 
service fund. 

L Continued 	 34 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

5. Materials and Supplies Inventories 

The Greenwood Utilities' materials and supplies inventories are valued at 
cost using the average cost method of inventory valuation. Any damaged or 
obsolete inventory is written down to fair market value. As further 
discussed in Note 7, Greenwood Utilities wrote down its coal inventory to 
$0 during 2014. 

6. Capital Assets 

Capi tal assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost. 
Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value at the date 
received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that does not add 
to the value of capital assets or materially extend their respective 
lives are not talized. Interest expenditures during the construction 
period are capitalized on capital assets. 

The City's classes of capital assets and their capitalization levels are: 
land - cost or fair market value; buildings and building improvements 
$50,000; improvements other than buildings $25,000; machinery and 
equipment $5,000; mobile equipment - $10,000; and infrastructure - cost 
or fair market value. 

Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Improvements other than buildings 
Electric, water and sewer system 
Infrastructure 
Heavy machinery and equipment 
Other furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 
Computer equipment and peripherals 

o years 
20 years 
20-50 years 
20-50 years 
5-25 years 
7 years 
5 years 
3-5 years 

Infrastructure 
than related to 

assets include roads, 
utilities), sidewalks, 

bridges, 
etc. 

underground pipe (other 

7. Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting 
periods and are recorded as prepaid items. 

8. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statements of net tion will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. Deferred 
outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resource (expense) until then. The City did not enter into any 
transactions during the year that qualify for reporting in this category. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

9. Compensated Absences 

City of Greenwood: 

The City accrues accumulated unpaid personal leave and associated 
employee-related costs when earned (or estimated to be earned) by 
employees up to 80 hours for less than 10 years of service and 120 hours 
for more than 10 years of service. For the proprietary funds and the 
government-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated 
for use in the following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the 
governmental funds, in the funds financial statements, all of the 
compensated absences are considered long- term and therefore, are not a 
fund liability and represent a reconciling item between the fund level 
and government-wide presentation. The compensated absences liability is 
liquidated by the following funds: general fund, special revenue, sewer 
and solid waste. 

Unused sick leave is not paid upon termination, but will be paid only 
upon illness while in the employment of the City. 

Greenwood Utilities: 

Personnel policies of Greenwood Utilities allow for ten days of vacation 
per year after one year of continued employment and fifteen days of 
vacation after ten years of continued employment. No payment of accrued 
personal leave is paid upon termination of employment; therefore, all 
personal leave is taken before resigning or retiring. of 
accrued medical leave is authorized only when the employee 
payment is made upon termination or resignation. 

At September 30, 2014, Greenwood Utilities has recorded both the current 
and long-term portion of the accumulated unpaid personal leave that is 
expected to be paid. The liability for accrued vacation is computed 
using the specific identification method, whereby the actual number of 
vacation leave hours accumulated by each employee is multiplied by the 
employee's hourly rate at September 30, 2014. The liability for medical 
leave is computed using the specific identification method, whereby the 
actual number of medical leave hours accumulated by each employee, for 
all employees with 20 years or more service, is multiplied by the 
employee's hourly rate at September 30, 2014. The resulting liability to 
each employee is then increased to include social security for bothI 

accrued vacation and medical, and retirement contributions, for accrued 
vacation, the employer is required by law to pay as a percentage of 
compensation upon liquidation of the liability for accumulated personal 
leave. 

10. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet and statements of net 
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. The City has two items 
that qualify for reporting in this category. The unavailable revenue ­
property taxes and bond premium reported in the balance sheet and 
statements of net position, which arises under a modified accrual basis 
of accounting, represents amounts that are deferred and recognized as an 
inflow of resources in the periods that the amounts become available. The 
unavailable revenues - property taxes that are reported in the statement 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

of net position and balance sheet, arise from imposed nonexchange 
revenues (property taxes) which are assessed prior to the end of the 
fiscal year but levied in the subsequent year. The bond premium in the 
statements of net position is being amortized over the life of the bonds. 

11. Interfund Activity 

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, 
reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables 
and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near fair 
market rates are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. 
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All 
other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between 
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

12. Revenues 

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes 
are recognized at the levy date. All property taxes are billed, collected 
and recognized as revenue within the same period for which they are 
levied. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either 
capital or current operations are reported as non-operating revenues. 

proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the enterprise funds and of the government's 
internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and the internal service fund 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. In 
applying GASBS No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes 
liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and 
revenues when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time 
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility 
requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and 
unearned revenue by the recipient. 

13. Expenditures 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. 
Inventory costs are reported in the period when the inventory items are 
consumed, rather than in the period purchased. 

14. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is 
reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on 
the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the 
specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund 
balance is reported in five components nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

Nonspendable This component includes amounts that cannot be spent 
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted This component consists of amounts that have constraints 
placed on them either externally by third-parties (credi tors, grantors, 
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments) or by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling 
legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge or otherwise 
mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and 
includes a ly enforceable requirement (compelled by external 
parties) that those resources be used only for the specific purposes 
st ated in the legislation. 

Committed This component consists of amounts that can only be used for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the 
City's highest level of decision-making authority which includes the city 
charter, ordinances or resolutions. Those committed amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the City removes or changes the 

fied use by taking the same type of action (city charter, ordinance 
or resolution) it employed previously to commit those amounts. 

1:;-

Assigned This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the 
City's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither 
restricted nor committed. The City had not adopted a fund balance policy 
as of September 3D, 2014. 

Unassigned This classification represents amounts that have not been 
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the general 
fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a itive 
unassigned fund balance amount. Other governmental funds bes the 
general fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance amount. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it 
is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted 
resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) as they are needed. When 
unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) are available 
for use it is the City's policy to use committed resources first, then 
assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed. 

15. Pension Expenses 

The Ci ty funds pension expenses as required by applicable statute. Two 
plans, funded from both City and employee contributions are described in 
Note 4. 

16. Post-Employment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

The City and Greenwood Utilities do not incur costs associated with 
employment benefits for retired employees. 

17. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles general accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 

L Continued 38 



I 

I 

i 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 


-

I 

I 




CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 3D, 2014 


NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED): 

inflows of resources and disclosures. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

18. Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental 
Authorities 

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities 
by Greenwood Utili ties are presented in the accompanying statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position on a net basis. 

19. Future Accounting Pronouncements 

The City will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements in future 
years: 

GASS Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions ~ 

an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, (GASS 68) is effective for periods 
beginning after June 15, 2014. This statement requires the recognition of 
the entire net pension liability attributable to the governmental entity 
and provides for a more comprehensive measure of pension expense for 
employer and governmental nonemployer contributing entity financial 
reports. Management has yet to determine the impact on the financial 
statements. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


i, September 30, 2014... 
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. 	 Budgetary Information 

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements. 

1. 	The City Clerk prepares estimates of available revenue. 

2. 	Department directors submit proposed expenditure budgets to the City 
Clerk by August of each year. 

3. 	The City Clerk reviews expenditure budgets, and necessary revisions 
are communicated to department directors. 

4. 	 Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget 
is prepared and presented to the Mayor. 

5. 	The Mayor submits the proposed budget to the City Council. The final 
budget is approved by September 15 and must be published in a local 
newspaper on or before September 30. 

6. 	The budget is formally amended in September each year or any time that 
budget revisions through funds reallocation are necessary or a budget 
deficit is indicated. 

7. 	The City prepares annual budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue 
Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital projects Funds, Enterprise Funds 
and Internal Service Fund. Budgets for the Enterprise Funds are 
prepared on a modified-cash basis excluding depreciation and bad debt 
expense and including debt retirement payments. Budgets for the 
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Internal 
Service Fund and Capital Proj ects 'Funds are prepared in accordance 
with state law. State law requires that the City's budget be prepared 
on a modified-cash basis of accounting. All revenue is accounted for 
under the cash basis. Claims that have been incurred prior to the end 
of the year and are paid before October 31 are charged against the 
current year's budget. If the claim is incurred prior to the end of 
the year but paid after October 30, it is charged against the budget 
for the subsequent year. This required budgetary basis is not 
considered a generally accepted accounting principle in the United 
States of America. Budget and actual comparisons are presented in the 
accompanying financial statements for all governmental activities that 
are considered to be major funds under GASB 34 guidelines. 

During the fiscal year, several adjustments are normally required to 
the adopted budget. The approved budget may be amended as required in 
accordance with the following protocol: 

• 	 Revenues are reviewed and projections are adjusted if warranted. 
These adjustments to expected revenues, if material, can 
precipitate adjustments to the expenditure budget. 

• 	 Adjustments to transfer approved expenditure budgets from one 
department to another or to transfer from one category to 
another within a department must be approved by the City 
Council. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial statements 

September 30, 2014 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED): 

• 	 All new appropriations must be approved by the City Council and 
are normally submitted by the Mayor's office. 

The legal level of control for all budgets adopted is at the category 
level by fund with the exception of the General Fund, which is 
appropriated at the category level by department. Administrative 
control for all budgets is maintained through the establishment of 
more detailed line-item budgets. 

The City Clerk exercises budgetary monitoring throughout the fiscal 
year. An adopted budget may not exceed its appropriated level without 
City Council approval. The City Clerk advises the Mayor whenever a 
requested expenditure will exceed budgeted amounts. The City Council 
may approve expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts in various 
funds or departments as appropriate, as long as total annual 
expenditures do not exceed available resources. Adjustments in 
expenditure rates, if necessary, are implemented by the City Council 
as required, so that the total expenditures and resources will remain 
in balance throughout the year. 

8. 	Budgeted expenditure or expense amounts (including transfers out) as 
originally adopted were amended by the City Council as provided by 
law, as follows: 

Originally Budget Increase 

Adopted Budget As Amended (Decrease) 

General Fund $ 11,614,083 $ 11,673,870 $ 59,787 

Other General Funds 416,001 565,131 149,130 

Special Revenue Funds 151,757 5,274,088 5,122,331 

Debt Service Funds 688,461 829,211 140,750 

Enterprise Funds 8,047,110 68,318,658 60,271,548 

Internal Service Fund 1,429,951 1,429,951 

$ 22,347,363 $ 88,090,909 65,743,546 

The above figures do not include the budgets for Greenwood 
Utilities, the Greenwood Tourism Commission, or the Greenwood-Leflore 
~ublic Library since they are not budgeted by the City Council. 

9. 	Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end in all funds. 

Continued 41 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2014 

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED): 

10. 	 Expenditures over appropriations at the legal level of budgetary 
control are as follows: 

Budget Actual Overage 

General Fund 
Street Division Other Services & Charges $ 401,604 $ 420,369 $ 18,765 

Street Division - Capital Outlay $ 11,500 $ 90,275 $ 78,775 

Fire Protection Fund 
Capital Outlay 	 $ 2,330 $ 2,633 $ 303 

Keesler Bridge Project 
Supplies 	 $ $ 33 $ 33 

B. 	 Deficit Fund Equity 

The City of Greenwood did not have any deficit fund equities in any 
individual funds at year end. 

42Continued 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS: 

A. 	 Deposits and Investments 

1. 	Policies and Practices 

The collateral for public entities' deposits in financial institutions is 
held in the name of the State Treasurer under a program established by 
the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5, 
Mississippi Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are 
protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. 
Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge 
securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure 
of a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would 
be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not 
covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 

2. 	 Deposits 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $15,033,022, 
and the bank balances totaled $14,649,880. Of the bank balances, $415,865 
was insured by federal deposit insurance and $14,234,015 was 
collateralized by the pledging financial institution' s trust department 
or agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer on behalf of 
Greenwood Utilities. 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the Greenwood Utilities' deposits was 
$13,193,526, and the bank balances totaled $10,721,072. Of the bank 
balances, $750,010 was insured by federal deposit insurance and 
$9,971,062 was collateralized by the pledging financial institution's 
trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer 
on behalf of Greenwood Utilities. 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the Tourism's and Library's deposits 
was $287,907 and $239,499, respectively, and the bank balances totaled 
$287,907 and $242,619, respectively. Of the bank balances, $287,907 and 
$242,619 was insured by federal deposit insurance. 

3. 	 Investments 

The City and its component units had no investments other than 
certificates of deposit for the current fiscal year but is eligible to 
invest as described below. 

Following is a list of the City's eligible investments, which in 
accordance with state statute are limited to the investment of funds in 
e~cess of sums required for immediate expenditure or current obligations: 

• 	 Certificates of deposit with municipal depositories approved 
annually by the State Treasurer 

• 	 Bonds or direct obligations of the: 

United States of America 

State of Mississippi 

County or Municipality of Mississippi 

School Districts 


State statute allows the investment of funds received from the sale of 
bonds, notes, or certificates of indebtedness which are not immediately 
required for disbursement for the purpose issued, in direct obligations 

Continued 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

issued by or guaranteed in full by the United States of America, or in 
certificates of deposit with approved municipal depositories. 

B. Receivables 

Receivables at September 30, 2014, for the primary government's 
individual major funds and nonmajor and internal service funds in the 
aggregate (including its blended component unit, Greenwood Utilities), 
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
follows (amounts are expressed in thousands) : 

Other Sewage 
Governmental Enterprise Greenwood 

General Funds Fund Utilities Total 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts, other 
governments 

$ $ $ $ 4,488 $ 4,488 

Intergovernmental 

Property Taxes 
Receivable 

727 

4,598 

150 

454 

20 108 1,005 

5,052 

Other 19 443 462 

Gross Receivables 5,344 604 20 5,039 11,007 

Less,allowance for 
doubtful accounts 57 6 163 226 

Total $ 5,287 $ 598 $ 20 $ 4,876 $ 10,781 

Receivables for Greenwood Utilities are reported net of uncollectible 
amounts. $162,713 was determined to be uncollectible for the current 
year. 

1. Property taxes 

Property taxes on real and personal property, exclusive of automobiles, 
attach as an enforceable lien on January 1 for the preceding fiscal year. 
Leflore County bills and collects the real, personal, public utilities 
and auto ad valorem taxes for the City of Greenwood and Greenwood Public 
School District. The taxes are remitted monthly following the month in 
which they are collected. Leflore County also remits to the City a pro 
rata share of road and bridge taxes collected by the County. 

The taxes are due on or before February Ii however, installment payments 
can be made; one-half of the balance is due on February 1 and one-fourth 
each on May 1 and August 1. 

Property taxes receivable (exclusive of agency funds) $ 5,052,066 


Less; Allowance for doubtful accounts 63,290 


Total property taxes receivable, net $ 4,988,776 

Continued 44
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CITY OF GREENWOOD 1 MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30 1 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

Tax mil levies for 2013 were collected in the current fiscal year and 
statutory maximum millage rates were as follows: 

Levy 


Fund 
 (in mills) Purpose Maximum 

General Fund 
 39.42 General None 

Debt Service Fund 
 4.74 Debt retirement None 


Disability & Relief Fund 4.10 Retirement None 


Total City of Greenwood 48.26 

Greenwood Public Schools: 

District Maintenance 50.25 Public schools None 

Total Greenwood Public Schools 50.25 

Total millage rate 98.51 

The City is tted to levy taxes based on a percentage of up to 100% 
of fair value of property at the millage indicated above. At the present 
time l the City levies taxes based on 10% of fair value for homeowner­
occupied real propertYI 15% of fair value for all other real and personal 
propertYI and 30% of fair value for all motor vehicles and property owned 
by public service corporations. The City may levy taxes as necessary to 
meet bonded debt retirement. Limitations are imposed on the amount of 
bonded debt that may be issued based upon the assessed valuation of 
properties. 

Annual tax increases for all purposes except payment of general 
obligation bonds and interest are limited by State law to 10% of the 
poceceding year's receipts plus new construction. 

Gbvernmental funds reported unavailable revenue in connection with 
riecei vables for revenues that are not considered to be available to 
l~quidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also 
defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been 
r~ceivedl but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds 
w~re as follows: 

Unearned 
Gurrent year tax assessments - governmental funds 
lexclusive of agency funds) $ 4,880 / 322 

Prepaid rent - Milwaukee Tool $ 24,865 

Unearned grant revenue Sewage Ent se $ 3,063 / 279 

2. Sales Taxes 

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits these 
collections to the City monthly. Intergovernmental revenue of the 
General Fund includes $4,450,269 of sales tax revenue. 

Continued 4S L 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


~OTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

~. Changes in Capital Assets 

1. 	 Primary government asset activity for the year ended September 
: 30, 2014, was as follows (amounts are in thousands): 

Balance Balance 
9/30/13 Additions Deletions Transfers 9/30/14 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 3,398 $ 90 $ $ $ 3,488 
Construction-in-progress 2,048 616 (2,341) 323 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 5,446 706 (2,341) 3,811 

~apital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 22,855 2,341 25,196 
Buildings & improvements 7,448 55 150 7,353 
Equipment & furniture 914 45 83 876 
Mobile equipment 4,747 79 287 4,539 

; 

Total capital assets being depreciated 35,964 179 520 2,341 37,964 

Ji,ess accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure 

Buildings & improvements 
Equipment & furniture 

i Mobile equipment 
total accumulated depreciation 

8,440 

2,341 
542 

3,127 
14,450 

513 

153 
65 

227 
958 

12 
62 

258 
332 

8,953 

2,482 
545 

3,096 
15,076 

total capital assets being depreciated, 

net 21,514 (779) 188 2,341 22,888 


Total governmental activities capital 
<'ISS ets, net $ 26,960 $ (73) $ 188 $ . $26,699 

Continued 46 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


~OTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALLI FUNDS (CONT INUED) : 

! 


Balance 	 Balance 
9/30113 Additions Deletions Transfers 9/30/14

!Business-type activities: 
iCapital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 	 - ­• 	 $ 451 $ $ $ $ 451 
Construction-in-progress 9,733 22,735 1,023 31,445 

• Total capital assets not being depreciated 	 10,184 22,735 1,023 31 1896 

Capital assets being depreciated: .. 	 Infrastructure 19,869 262 

• 
20,131 

Buildings & improvements 781 781 
Equipment & furniture 427 46 381 
Mobile equipment 2,549 133 89 2,593 
Electric and water production plant 24,741 120 24,861 
Electric and water distribution plant 45,653 1,374 47,027 

,<' Electric and water general plant 6,205 737 90 6,852.. total capital assets being depreciated 	 100,225 2,626 225 102,626 

;; Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure 4,260 550 4,810• Buildings & improvements 586 1 587 

,;'; Equipment & furniture 223 29 21 231 
Mobile equipment 1,935 178 80 2,033L 
Electric and water production plant 12,084 957 13,041 
Electric and water distribution plant 15,696 1,330 17,026 

Hi Electric and water general plant 3,649 464 76 4,037;. 
Total accumulated depreciation 38,433 3,509 177 41,765 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 61,792 ~883l 48 60,861 

,~} 

II 	 Total business-type activities capital assets, net $ 71,976 $ 21,852 $ 1,071 $ - $ 92,757 

l­
-,I. 

i::h 

L 
<";,L 
;t; 

I­
$. 

L 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2014 

!NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

;2. Depreciation expense was 
government as follows: 

charged to functions of the primary 

.. 

:Governmental activities: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Culture and recreation 

Economic development and assistance 

,Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

9,796 

247,943 

486,845 

27,345 

185,805 

957,734 

.. 
Susiness-type activities: 

Sewage enterprise 

Greenwood Utilities 

Non-major business-type activities 

$ 623,797 

2,651,683 

134,786 

Total depreciation expense business-type activities $ 3,410,266 

,. 

• 

3. Construction work-in-progress is composed of the following: 

Project Spent-to-<iate Remaining Commitment 

~overnmental-type activities: 

MOOT Street Project 

Linear Park 

Main Street $ 29,723 

293,732 

$ 1,400,000 

3,043,768 

Total $ 323,455 $ 4,443,768 

BUSiness-type activities: 

waste Water Treatment Facility 

waste Water pumping Stations 

Mississippi Valley State Force Main 

Waste Water sludge 

Greenwood Utilities 

$ 29,321,476 

585,121 

917,306 

46,017 

574,570 

$ 9,703,524 

14,879 

3,063,279 

553,983 

Total $ 31,444,490 $ 13,335,665 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2014 

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FONDS (CONTINUED) 

4. A summary of changes in capital assets for 
follows (amounts are expressed in thousands) : 

component units is as 

.~... 
Capital assets being 
depreciated: 

Building improvements 

Books & materials 

Mobile equipment 

Equipment & furniture 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Balance 
9/30/13 

$ 173 

797 

15 

310 

1,295 

Additions 

$ 8 

43 

63 

114 

Deletions 

$ 11 

41 

52 

Adjustments 

$ $ 

Balance 
9/30/14 

170 

840 

15 

332 

1,357 

i Less accumulated depreciation 
for: 

Buildings & improvements 145 4 11 139 

Books & materials 665 47 712 

Mobile equipment 14 14 

Equipment & furniture 275 19 24 270 

'Total capital assets being 
•depreciated, net 1,099 70 35 1,134 

Total capital assets, net $ 196 $ 44 $ 17 $ $ 

Depreciation expense was charged to activities as follows: 

Library $ 71,039 

Tourism Commission 

Total $ 71,039 

L 49Continued 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

D. 	 Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances as of September 
30, 2014, follows: 

Interfund Interfund 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 234,749 $ 87,578 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Urban Youth Corps Project 33,521 

Drug Court Grant 4,339 

Domestic Violence Grant 2,615 

Dur 	Grant 23,378 

COPS Grant II 4,654 

Traffic Safety Project 	 8,808 

Linear Parks System 	 7,657 

Milwaukee Tool Expansion 	 62,199 

General Obligation Bond & Interest Fund 	 1,440 

Total Governmental Funds 	 236,189 234,749 

Sewage Enterprise 	 782,201 26,291 

Greenwood Utilities 	 107,520 1,271,151 

Nonmajor proprietary funds 

Solid Waste Enterprise 	 406,281 

Total Proprietary Funds 	 1,296,002 1,297,442 

Total All Funds 	 $ 1,532,191 $ 1,532,191 

• 	 The Sewage Enterprise and Solid Waste Enterprise receivables are 
for monies collected by Greenwood Utilities at year-end but not yet 
remitted. 

• 	 The Greenwood Utilities receivable is money due from the City for 
electric and water services. An equal amount for the General Fund 
and Sewage Enterprise Fund is due to Greenwood Utilities for free 
utility services. 

• 	 The other receivables and payables are temporary advances from one 
fund to another fund for cash flow purposes until the other fund 
receives funding from outside sources. 

• 	 The Sewage Enterprise Fund owes the General Obligation Bond and 
Interest Fund for paying agent fees paid from the General 
Obligation Bond and Interest Fund. 

L Continued 	 50 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

Transfers in/transfers out for the primary government follows: 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
General Fund $ 1,331,829 $ 112,366 
Nonmajor governmental funds 

Community Center Fund 6,500 
Cemetery Project 8,844 
Special Projects Fund 149,004 259,324 
Youth Summer Fun Recreation Program Fund 32,620 

Industrial Properties Fund 88,605 

Urban Youth Corp Project 8,380 

Downtown Greenwood Farmers Market 663 
Fire Protection Fund 1,382 

LLEBG Grant 1,359 

Domestic Preparedness Grant 16 

Domestic Violence Grant 11,293 

Safe Routes to School 12,565 

Drug Court Grant 11,312 

Surface Transportation Project 29,723 

Transportation Enhancement Project 49,004 

Yazoo River Trail 163 

Linear Parks System (Phase I & II) 91,304 

Mayor's Health Council Grant 663 

Cops Grant II 8,232 

Milwaukee Tool Expansion 

Total Governmental Funds 1,793,778 495,548 

Sewage Enterprise 202,427 

Greenwood Utilities 1,597,680 

Nonmajor proprietary funds 

Solid Waste Assistance Grant 14,484 

Unemployment Insurance Fund 25,000 

Solid Waste Enterprise 57,539 

299,450 1,597,680 

$ 2,093,228 $ 2,093,228 

•f Continued 51L 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 	 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

Interfund transfers at September 30, 2014 consisted of the following: 

$ 	 11,293 

32,620 

8,844 
11,312 

3,000 
8,380 
8,232 

163 
25,000 

781 
1,359 
1,382 

91,304 
55,284 
29,723 

14,430 
40,315 

13,703 

2,000 

12,565 
663 

16 

49,004 
74,175 

83,000 

100,000 

725,000 

689,680 

$ 2,093,228 

From General Fund to Domestic Violence for match funds. 

From General Fund to Youth Summer Fun Recreation Program to 
subsidize operations. 
From General Fund to Cemetery Fund to subsidize operations. 
From General Fund to Drug Court Fund to subsidize operations. 
From General Fund to Community Center Fund to subsidize the youth center. 
From General Fund to Urban Youth Corp Project for match funds. 
From General Fund to Cops Grant II for match funds. 
From General Fund to Yazoo River Trail fund to subsidize operations. 
From General Fund to Unemployment Insurance Fund to maintain sufficent balance. 
From General Fund to Solid Waste Assistance Grant fund for recycling center repairs. 
From General Fund to LLEGB Grant Fund to cover funds spent after grant deadline. 
From General Fund to Fire Protection fund to cover disallowed reimbursable expenses. 
From Special Projects Fund to Linear Park System Project for match funds. 
From Special Projects Fund to General Fund for operating lease payments. 
From Special Projects Fund to Surface Transportation Project for 
match on STP project to mill & overlay streets. 
From Special Pojects Fund to Industrial Properties Fund for Airport fire truck. 
From Special Pojects Fund to General Fund for the refurbishing of the old Med Stat 
building. 

From Special Projects fund to Solid Waste Assistance Grant for removal of mold at 

recycling center. 

From Special Projects Fund to Community Center Fund to subsidize operations at the youth 

center. 

From Special Projects Fund to Safe Routes to School for match funds. 

From Downtown Farmers Market Fund to Mayor's Health Council to subsidize operations. 

From Domestic Preparedness Grant Fund to General Fund to close out Domestic Preparedness 

Grant Fund. 

From Surface Transportation Fund to Special Projects Fund to subsidize operations. 


From Milauwkee Tool Fund to Industrial Properties Fund for AIC unit charged to 

Industrial Properties Fund. 

From Greenwood Utilities to the Sewage Enterprise Fund for sewer 

appropriations. 

From Greenwood Utilities to the Special Projects Fund to 

subsidize operations. 

From Greenwood Utilities to the General Fund to subsidize operations & 


appropriate $5,000 to the Stars & Stripes Festival. 

From Greenwood Utilities to the General Fund ($525,150), Community Center ($1,500) 

and Sewage Enterprise Fund ($163,030) for free utility services. 


Continued l 52 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2014 

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

E. Capital Leases 

The City leases property with varying terms and options. Most leases 
contain a clause that states the lease shall terminate in the event no 
funds or insufficient funds are appropriated. However, if renewal is 
reasonably assured, leases are considered noncancelable leases for 
financial reporting purposes. 

The City has financed an E-One Pumper Truck, three International Pac-Mac 
Garbage Trucks, three International Viper Knuckle Boom Trucks, one Front 
Loader Garbage Truck, and one E-One 75' Aerial Fire Truck by means of 
capital leases. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for 
accounting purposes (title transfers at the end of the lease term) and 
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum 
lease payments as of the date of their inception. 

One 2012 Mack MRU613 Chassis with Front Loader Garbage 
Truck $ 186,244 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments 

payable under this capital lease together with the present value of the 

net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2014: 

Year ending September 30: 

2015 $ 45,126 

Total minimum payments 45,126 

Less: Amount representing interest 610 

Present value of net minimum lease 
44,516payments $ 

Three 2009 International Pac-Mac Garbage Trucks / 

Three 2009 International Viper Knuckle Boom Trucks $ 531,899 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments 

payable under this capital lease together with the present value of the 

net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2014: 

Year ending September 30: 

2015 $ 64,173 

64,173Total minimum payments 
908Less: Amount representing interest 

Present value of net minimum lease 
$ 63,265payments 

53Continued 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

E-One Pumper Truck $ 288,900 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments 

payable under this capital lease together with the present value of 

the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2014: 

Year ending September 30: 

2015 $ 36,763 
2016 36,763 

2017 36,763 

•~;!I........... 2018 36,761 
Total minimum payments 147,050 
Less: Amount representing interest 15,594 

Present value of net minimum lease 

payments $ 131,456 

Fire Truck (E-One 75' Aerial on a Typhoon Chassis) $ 655,663 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments 

payable under this capital lease together with the present value of 

the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2014: 

Year ending September 30: 

2015 $ 75,575 

2016 75,575 

.. 2017 75,575 

~.. 2018 75,575 

2019 75,575 

Thereafter 226,724 

Total minimum payments 604,599 
Less: Amount representing interest 66,623 

Present value of net minimum lease 

payments $ 537,976 

Continued 54 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

F. Long-term debt: 

1. General Obligation Bonds 

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General 
obligation bonds have been issued for both general governmental and 
proprietary activities. Bonds issued for proprietary activities are 
reported in the proprietary funds if they are to be repaid from 
proprietary revenues. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith 
and credit of the City. These bonds generally are issued as serial bonds 
in denominations of $5, 000 each with principal maturing annually and 
interest due at various semi-annual dates. 

On November 22, 2011, the City issued $1,640,000 in General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, with an interest rate of 2.68% to refund 
$1,560,000 of outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002 (the 
"2002 General Obligation Bonds"), with an average interest rate of 4.37%. 
The net proceeds of $1,593,967 (after payment of $46,033 in bond issuance 
costs) resulted in a net present value savings benefit to the City in the 
amount of $82,818. The 2002 General Obligation Bonds are considered to 
be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the 
government-wide statement of net position. The difference between the 
cash flows required to service the old debt and the cash flows required 
to service the new debt and complete the refunding was $93,616. 

On June 13, 2012, the City issued $4,405,000 in Sewer System Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, with an average interest rate of 2.087% to 
refund $4,344,441 of outstanding State Revolving Loans for Phases I, II 
and III with an average interest rate of 4.50%, 3.50% and 3%, 
respectively. The net proceeds of $4,344,441, including a net original 
issue premium of $51,763 (after payment of $68,272 in bond issuance costs 
and $44,050 in underwriter fees) resulted in a net present value savings 
benefit to the City in the amount of $175,202. The State Revolving Loans 
for phases I, II and III are considered to be defeased and the liability 
for those loans has been removed from the proprietary fund balance sheet 
and the government-wide statement of net position. The difference 
between the cash flows required to service the old debt and the cash 
flows required to service the new debt and complete the refunding was 
$143,030. 

Ii'...;'.....! 
L Continued 55 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

General obligation bonds outstanding at September 30, 2014, were as 
follows: 

1. General Obligation Bonds payable out of governmental activities: 

$1,640,000 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

due in annual principal installments of $140,000 to $185,000 

through March I, 2022; interest at 2.68% $ 1,340,000 

$3,600,000 2002 General Obligation MBlA Bonds due in annual 

prinCipal installments of $180,000 through December 1, 2022; 

interest at 3% 1,620,000 

$1,500,000 2005 General Obligation Bonds due in annual•I principal installments of $45,000 to $110,000 through 

October I, 2025; interest at 4% to 5.625% 990,000 

$2,000,000 2006 General Obligation Bonds due in annual 

principal installments of $60,000 to $150,000 through 

May I, 2026; interest at 4% to 5% 1,420,000 

$ 5,370,000Total 

~.•...... 2. Notes Payable~ 

$600,000 Mississippi Development Authority Capital 

Improvements Revolving Loan due in monthly 

installments of $3,035 for 240 months at 2% annual 

interest to be computed daily. Payments will begin 

30 days after the completion date of the project. $ 479,213 

56Continued 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

3. State Revolving Loan 

The City entered into a loan agreement with the Mississippi Department of 

Environmental Quality to rehabilitate its sewer system and to construct a 

new wastewater treatment facility. Greenwood Utilities entered into a 

loan agreement with the Mississippi Department of Health for various 

drinking water projects. The state revolving loans payable at September 

30, 2014 are as follows: 


$7,879,072 Sewer Rehab Revolving loan due in monthly 


installments of $40,549 beginning July 1, 2008, 


through January 1, 2028; interest at 2% $ 5,690,680 


$39,025,000 Sewer Rehab Revolving loan due in monthly 


installments of $194,873 beginning August 1, 2015, 


through April 1, 2035; interest at 1.75% $ 28,075,207 


These loans will be repaid by a reduction in sales tax revenue received 

from the Mississippi Department of Revenue each month. 


$2,949,026 Drinking Water Systems Improvement Revolving 


loan, 20 year loan; interest at 1.95% 	 $ 92,624 


4. Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 
),.

L 	 $4,405,000 Sewer Refunding Bonds due in annual 

principal installments of $185,000 to $610,000 through 

September 30, 	 2021; interest at 2% $ 3,310,000 

l 	 57Continued 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 




CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

5. Long-term Debt Transactions 

A summary of long-term debt transactions for the year ended September 30, 
2014, was as follows (in thousands of dollars) : 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 

t
II General Obligation bonds $ 4,050 $ $ 300 $ 3,750 $ 305 

General Obligation MBlA bond 1,800 180 1,620 180 

Capital lease 758 89 669 92 

Compensated absences 263 249 263 249 249 

Total governmental activities 
$ 6,871 $ 249 $ 832 $ 6,288 $ 

Business-type activities: 

State revolving loan (Phase 

IV) 
 $ 6,059 $ $ 368 $ 5,691 $ 376 

State revolving loan (Phase V) 6,696 21,380 28,076 276 

State revolving loan (Drinking 
Water) 92 92 89 

Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2012 3,885 575 3,310 585 

Capital Improvement Loan 479 479 

Capital lease 257 150 107 107 

~.. Compensated absences 435 27 62 400 119.. 
Total business-type activities 

$ 17,424 $ 21,886 $ 1,155 $ 38,155 $ 1,552 

6. Legal Debt Margin and Debt Covenants 

The City's legal debt margin for the issuance of general obligation bonds 
was $16,214,013 at ember 30, 2014. 

There are a number of requirements contained in the various debt 
obligations. The City is in compliance with all s ficant 
requirements. 

l Continued 58 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

7. Annual Maturities Requirements 

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding as of 
September 30, 2014, including interest, by source of retirement are as 
follows: 

Debt Service Fund (Special Tax Levy) 

General Obligation Bonds (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 
2015 $ 305,000 $ 134,948 $ 439,948 

~..•.. 

iii 
2016 325,000 124,078 449,078 
2017 340,000 113,057 453,057 
2018 350,000 101,502 451,502 
2019 365,000 89,509 454,509 
2020-2024 1,660,000 255,825 1,915,825 

2025-2026 405,000 24,219 429,219 

Totals $ 3,750,000 $ 843,138 $ 

General Fund & Fire Protection Fund (Special Tax Levy & State Fire 

Protection Revenues) 


Capital Lease (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2015 91,874 

2016 94,931 

2017 98,098 

2018 101,378 

2019 68,015 

2020 2022 215,135 

20,463 

17,406 

14,239 

10,959 

7,560 

11,589 

112,337 

112,337 

112,337 

112,337 

75,575 

226,724 

Totals $ 669,431 $ 82,216 $ 751,647 

Solid Waste (Solid Waste Revenues) 

Capital Lease (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 107,780 $ 1,518 $ 109,298 

Totals $ 107,780 $ 1,518 $ 109,298 

L Continued 59 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

Industrial Rent #255 (Milwaukee Tool Rents) 

General Obligation MBIA Bond (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 
2015 $ 180,000 $ 45,900 $ 225,900 
2016 180,000 40,500 220,500 
2017 180,000 35,100 215,100 
2018 180,000 29,700 209,700 
2019 180,000 24,300 204,300 
2020-2023 720,000 43,200 763,200 

Totals $ 1,620,000 $ 218,700 $ 1,838,700 

Sewage Enterprise Fund (Water / Sewer Revenues) 

State Revolving Loan IV (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 376,210 $ 1l0,377 $ 486,587 

2016 383,804 102,784 486,588 

2017 391,550 95,037 486,587 

2018 399,454 87,134 486,588 

2019 407,516 79,071 486,587 

2020-2024 2,164,334 268,603 2,432,937 

2025-2029 1,567,812 54,146 1,621,958 

Totals $ 5,690,680 $ 797,152 $ 6,487,832 

Sewage Enterprise Fund (Water/Sewer Revenues) 

Sewer Refunding Bonds (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 585,000 $ 68,213 $ 653,213 

2016 600,000 56,513 656,513 

2017 610,000 44,513 654,513 

2018 605,000 32,313 637,313 

2019 435,000 20,213 455,213 

2020-2021 475,000 15,920 490,920 

Totals $ 3 310 000 $ 237 685 3 547 685 

L Continued 60 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

Sewage Enterprise Fund (Water/Sewer Revenues) 

Capital Improvement Loan (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 
2015 $ $ $ 
2016 25,244 11,179 36,423 
2017 25,150 11,274 36,424 
2018 25,658 10,766 36/424 
2019 26,176 10,247 36,423 

2020-2024 138,980 43,138 182,118 

2025-2029 153,632 28,486 182,118 

2030-2034 169,797 12,321 182/118 

2035 35,363 373 35,736 

Totals $ 600,000 $ 127,784 $ 727,784 

The amortization schedule noted above is estimated as the 

project was not completed at year-end and the City has not 

received the finalized amortization schedule. 

Sewage Enterprise Fund (Water/Sewer Revenues) 

State Revolving Loan V (Memorandum Only) 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2015 $ 276,124 $ 113,622 $ 389,746 

2016 1/673,752 664,773 2/338 / 525 

2017 1,703,279 635,196 2/338/475 

2018 1,733,327 605,148 2/338,475 

2019 1,763,905 574,571 2,338/476 

2020-2024 9/297,405 2,394/973 11/692,378 

2025-2029 10/146,934 1,545,443 11/692,377 

2030-2034 11,074/086 618/290 11,692,376 

2035 1,356,188 7,871 1,364/059 

Totals $ 39,025,000 $ 7/159,887 $ 46,184,887 

The amortization schedule noted above is estimated as the 

project was not completed at year-end and the City has not 

received the finalized amortization schedule. 

Continued 61 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED): 

G. Net Position/Fund Balance: 

1. The City adopted GABB Statement 54 during the year ended September 30, 
2011. As such, fund balance of the governmental funds is classified by 
specific purpose as follows: 

Nonmajor Total 
Governmental Governmental 

General Fund Funds Funds 
FUND BALANCES: 
NONSPENDABLE: 
General government $ $ $ 

RESTRICTED FOR: 
Public safety 892 892 
Public works 208,918 208,918 
Health & welfare 16,460 16,460 
Economic development & 
assistance 566,615 566,615 
Debt service 388,958 388,958 

COMMITTED TO: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 

ASSIGNED TO: 
General government 
Public safety 34,985 34,985 
Culture & recreation 10,142 10,142 
Special projects 341,021 341,021 
Economic development & 
assistance 132,913 132,913 

Total fund balances $ $ 1,700,904 $ 1,700,904 

Unrestricted net position for Greenwood Utilities was comprised of 
unrestricted net position and board designated net position balances of 
$6,820,079 and $7,688,184, respectively. 

NOTE 4 - PENSION PLANS 

The City of Greenwood participates in two retirement systems administered 
by the Public Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Both 
systems are defined benefit plans and include a multi-employer, cost­
sharing pension plan and an agent multiple employer pension plan. 

A. Public Employees' Retirement System 

1. Plan Description and Provisions 

Substantially all City of Greenwood, Greenwood Utilities, Greenwood 
Tourism Commission and Greenwood-Leflore Public Library employees 
participate in PERS, a multi employer, cost-sharing defined benefit 
public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan 

Continued l 62 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 4 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED): 

members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by Section 
21-29-201 of the Mississippi Code of 1942 as annotated and may be amended 
only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That information may be obtained by 
writing to Public Employees' Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 
Mississippi Street, Jackson, MS, 39201-1005 or by calling (601) 359-3589 
or 1-800-444-PERS. 

2. Description of Funding Policy 

PERS members are required to contribute 9% of their annual salary. The 
City of Greenwood, Greenwood Utilities, the Greenwood Tourism Commission 
and the Greenwood-Leflore Public Library are required to contribute at an 
actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 15.75% of annual covered 
payroll. The contribution requirements of PERS members are established 
and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. 

Annual Pension Cost. For 2014, the City's and Greenwood Utilities' 
annual pension cost of $1,078,245 and $585,379 for PERS was equal to the 
City's and Greenwood Utilities' required and actual contributions. 

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS 

(Dollar amounts in Thousands) 

Fiscal Annual Percentage 

Year Pension of APC 

Funding Cost (APC) Contributed 

City of Greenwood 

9/30/2012 $ 900 100% 

9/30/2013 $ 1,024 100% 

9/30/2014 $ 1,078 100% 

Greenwood Utilities 

9/30/2012 $ 525 100% 

9/30/2013 $ 574 100% 

9/30/2014 $ 585 100% 

I ..... ,'

" 

B. Disability and Relief - Municipal Retirement Systems Pension Plan 

1. Plan Description 

The City of Greenwood contributes to the Municipal Retirement Systems and 
Fire and Police Disability and Relief Fund (MRS), an agent multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public 
Employees' Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). The City's uniformed 
police officers and firefighters employed prior to April 1, 1976, 
participate in MRS. Firefighters and police officers employed subsequent 
to April 1, 1976, are members of the Public Employees' Retirement System 
of the State as previously described. MRS provides retirement and 
disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
Benefit provisions are established by Sections 21-29, Articles 1, 3, 5, 
and 7, Mississippi Code Ann. (1972) and annual local and private 
legislation. Only the Legislature of the State of Mississippi can amend 

Continued 63
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 4 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED): 

the plan. At September 30, 2013, there were 2 participating municipal 
employees and 60 retired participants and beneficiaries currently 
receiving benefits. PERS issues a publicly available financial report 
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for MRS. That information may be obtained by writing to Public 
Employees' Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, 
Jackson, MS, 39201-1005 or by calling (601)359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

MRS uses the accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer 
contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which employee 
services are performed, and investment income is recognized when earned. 
Expenses, including benefits and refunds paid, are recognized when 
incurred. Investments for MRS are reported at fair value. Securities 
traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last 
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Corporate bonds are 
valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities from 
issuers of similar credit rating. Mortgage securities are valued on the 
basis of future principal and interest payments and counted at prevailing 
interest rates for similar instruments. Short-term investments are 
reported at market value when published prices are available, or at cost 

plus accrued interest, which approximates market or fair value. For 
individual investments where no readily ascertainable market value 
exists, the Public Employees' Retirement System, in consultation with 
their investment advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair 
values. 

3. Funding Status and Progress 

The actuarial accrued liability is a measure intended to (i) help users 
assess the plan's funding status on a going-concern basis, and (ii) 
assess progress being made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due. For the years ending September 30, 1994, and prior, 
the actuarial value of assets was equal to book value. Beginning with 
the September 30 I 1995, actuarial valuation, the actuarial value of 
assets will be determined on a market related basis that recognizes 20% 
of the previously unrecognized and unanticipated gains and losses (both 
realized and unrealized). Allocation of the actuarial present value of 
projected benefits between past and future service was based on service 
using the entry age actuarial cost method. Assumptions, including 
projected pay increases, were the same as used to determine the system's 
annual required contribution between entry age and assumed exit 
age. Entry age was established by subtracting credited service from 
current age on the valuation date. 

The entry age actuarial accrued liability was determined as part of an 
actuarial valuation of the system (but not used for funding purposes) as 
of June 30, 2014. Significant actuarial assumptions used in determining 
the entry age actuarial accrued liability include: (a) a rate of return 
on the investment of present and future assets of 8% per year compounded 
annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5%-6.00% per year 
compounded annually, attributable to 3.5% inflation, and (c) additional 
projected salary increases of 4.25% per year compounded annually, 
attributable to seniority/merit. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 4 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED): 

The actuarial accrued liability was as follows: 

(In 
Thousands 

of 
Actuarial Accrued Liability Dollars) 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently 
receiving benefits $ 7,577 

Active members 568 
~... 

II 
Vested terminated members not yet 
receiving benefits 

Total actuarial accrued liability 8,145 

Actuarial value of assets 2,982 

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 5 163 

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the System experienced a net change 
of ($191,349) in the actuarial accrued liability. 

The schedule of funding progress is shown below: 

I 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
($ Thousands) 

Plan Year 
Ended 

(1 ) 
Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(2) 
Actuarial 

Accrued 
Liability 

(AAL) 
Entry Age 

(3 ) 
Percent 
Funded 
(1)/(2) 

(4 ) 
Unfunded 

AAL 
(2)-(1) 

(5) 
Annual 

Covered 
payroll 

(6) 
Unfunded 
AAL as a 

Percentage ! 

of Covered 
Payroll 
(4) / (5) 

9/30/05 $2,980 $10,131 29.4% $7,151 $186 3,844.6%, 
9/30/06 $3,064 $9,981 30.7% $6,917 $109 6,345.9%' 
9/30/07 $3,217 $9,526 33.8% $6,309 $108 5,841.7%' 
9/30/08 $3,288 $9,018 36.5% $5,730 $110 5,209.1% 
9/30/09 $3,167 $9,248 34.2% $6,081 $112 5,429.5% 
9/30/10 $3,062 $9,020 33.9% $5,958 $111 5,367.6% 
9/30/11 $3,140 $8,572 36.6% $5,432 $77 7,054.5% 
9/30/12 $2,948 $8,490 34.7% $5,542 $80 6,927.5% 
6/30/13 $2,922 $8,337 35.0% $5,415 $81 

.7%lli51 
6/30/14 $2,982 $8,145 36.6% $5,163 $83 6,220.5% 

Numbers shown above reflect all changes in benefit provisions, actuarial 
assumptions, and/or actuarial methods. 

l 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 4 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED): 

4. Contributions Required and Contributions Made 

The funding policy for MRS provides for periodic employer contributions 
at actuarially determined rates that are designed to accumulate 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. In developing the annual 
required contribution shown below, the normal cost and actuarial accrued 
liability are determined using the entry age actuarial cost method. 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized on a level dollar 
closed amortization method over 20 years. The City's active MRS members 
contribute ten percent of their base salaries to the plan. This 
difference has historically resulted in the actual contributions being 
less than the annual required contributions. 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 1 
IANNUAL REQUIRED PERCENTAGE 

FISCAL YEAR VALUATION DATE I 
CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTED 

2005-06 9/30/05 $653,548 113.3 
2006-07 9/30/06 $629,660 118.2 
2007-08 9/30/07 $582,979 135.2 
2008-09 9/30/08 $537,729 130.5 
2009-10 9/30/09 $576,859 120.3 
2010-11 9/30/10 $571,815 134.1 

121. 22011-12 9/30/11 $523,849 
-I9/30/122012-13 $542,575 90.0 

N/A2013-14 6/30/13 $540,218 
$525,624 N/A2014 15 6/30/14 

5. Supplemental Disclosure Information 

NUMBER OF ACTIVE AND RETIRED PARTICIPANTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 

GROUP NUMBER 

Retired participants 
receiving benefits 

and beneficiaries currently 
60 

Terminated participants and beneficiaries 
benefits but not yet receiving benefits 

entitled to 
o 

Active participants 2 

Inactive participants o 

Total 

~..... 
Continued 66
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 

~..... NOTE 4 - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED): 

The annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer as a dollar 
amount I determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 25/27, is 
shown below: 

2014/2015 FISCAL YEAR ANNUAL REQUIRED 

OF ICONTRIBUTION (ARC) BASED ON THE VALUATION AS 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Normal $ 8,352 
i Accrued liability 517,272 

! Total $525 624 

Additional information as of June 30, 2014: 

Valuation date 6/30/14 
Actuarial cost method Entry age 
Amortization method Level dollar closed 
Remaining amortization period 20 years 
Asset valuation method S-year smoothed market 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return * 8.00% 
Projected salary increases # 4.50%-6.00% 

* includes price inflation at 3.50% 
#includes wage inflation at 4.25% 
Cost-of-living adjustments None 

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk Management 

1. Unemployment Benefits 

The City maintains an Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund 
established pursuant to state law. In addition to funding all valid 
claims, the City is required to maintain the balance in the fund at no 
less than 2% of the first $6,000 paid each employee during the preceding 
year. As of September 30, 2014, the required amounts were funded. Claims 
totaled $13,610 during fiscal year 2014 for the City of Greenwood. 
Greenwood Utilities paid $17,638 for unemployment claims and $2,615 as a 
.5% employer. 

2. Group Employee Benefits 

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees' Group Benefit Fund 
(Internal Service Fund) to account for the accumulation of revenues, 
principally contributions from the City of Greenwood and employees, to be 
used to fund future liabilities and current payment of employee medical 
claims and related administration expenditures of the City's group 
benefit plan. Revenues, including interest income and reinsurance funds, 
totaled $1,279,570, and employee benefit costs and administrative 
expenses were $1,281,092 during fiscal year 2014. Claims incurred but not 
reported at September 30, 2014, in the Employees' Group Benefit Fund are 
provided for in claims payable and totaled $75,594. 

Greenwood Utilities maintains a Medical Plan Reserve Fund to account for 
the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the utility 

Continued 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED): 

and employees, to be used to fund future liabilities and current payment 
of employee medical claims and related administration expenditures of the 
utilities' medical plan. Revenues totaled $804,005, and employee benefit 
costs were $808,400 during fiscal year 2014. Claims incurred but not 
reported at September 30, 2014, in the Medical Plan Reserve Fund are 
included in group medical insurance claims allowance as a restricted 
liability and totaled $18,889. 

3. The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in 
liabilities for claims for the City of Greenwood (Greenwood Utilities not 
included) : 

Unemployment 
Benefits Employee 

Fund Benefit Fund 

Ending balance, 10/1/2012 

Current year claims 

Interest earnings 

Claims payments 

$ 57,243 

142 

(6,762) 

$ 345,148 

1,357,685 

1,181 

(1,409,634) 

Ending balance, 9/30/13 

Current year claims 

Interest earnings 

Transfer in 

Claims payments 

50,623 

60 

25,000 

(13,610) 

294,380 

1,279,110 

460 

(1,281,092) 

Ending balance, 9/30/14 $ 62,073 $ 292,858 

4. Workers' Compensation Benefits 

Risk of loss related to workers' compensation for injuries to City 
employees is covered through the Mississippi Municipal Workers' 
Compensation Group, a public entity risk pool. The pool was formed on 
March 28, 1989, by the Mississippi Nonprofit Corporation Act, pursuant to 
Section 71-3-75, Mississippi Code Annotated (1972), to provide public 
entities within the State of Mississippi workers' compensation and 
employers' liability coverage. The City pays premiums to the pool for 
its workers' compensation insurance coverage based on total payroll. The 
participation agreement provides that the pool will be self-sustaining 
through member premiums. The risk of loss is remote for claims exceeding 
the pool's retention liability. Expenditures and claims are recognized 
when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. In determining claims, events that might 
create claims, but for which none have been reported, are considered. 
For insured programs there have been no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance 
coverage for the current year or the three prior years. 

Greenwood Utilities purchases insurance for its workers' compensation 
coverage. 

Continued 68 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 




CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED): 

5. Tort Liability 

In compliance with the Tort Claims Act, Chapter 46 of Title 11 and as 
amended by the 1993 Legislature, Section 11-46 17(3) requires all 

~.. 	 municipalities from and after October 1, 1993, to obtain such policies of.. 	 insurance, establish self-insurance reserves, or provide a combination of 
insurance and reserves necessary to cover all risks of claims and suits 
for which the City of Greenwood may be liable under the Tort Claims Act. 

In order to assure compliance with the Tort Claims Act, the Mississippi 
Tort Claims Board was established by House Bill 417. Municipalities are 
required to submit plans of insurance, self-insurance and/or reserves to 
the Tort Claims Board for approval. 

Municipalities may comply with the requirements of the Tort Claims Act by 
one of the following methods: (1) Purchase of liability insurance, (2) 
Pooling of two or more municipalities or other political subdivisions to 
purchase liability insurance or to self insure, (3) Self insure with the 
establishment 	of a self-insurance reserve fund. 

The City of Greenwood, Greenwood Utilities, the Greenwood Tourism 
Commission and the Greenwood-Leflore Public Library are in compliance by 
purchasing liability insurance through the Mississippi Municipal 
Liability plan (MMLP), a public entity risk pool. The group is a risk­
sharing POOli such a pool is frequently referred to as a self-insurance 
pool. MMLP covers risks of loss against members in the group arising 
from claims related to torts and other liability claims. The Mississippi 
Municipal Liability Plan requires that an indemnity agreement be executed 
by each member in the pool for the purpose of jointly and severally 
binding the pool and each of the members comprising the group to meet the 
liability obligations of each member. The general policy limit is 
$500,000 per occurrence, but the policy also tracks the Mississippi tort 
claims law for municipalities that limits the City's liability to 
$500,000 per 	 occurrence. The policy also covers up to $1, 000,000 in 
federal claims. If total claims during a year were to deplete the trust 
account, then the pool members would be required to pay for the 
deficiencies. Settled claims resulting from these insured risks have not 
exceeded the City's insurance coverage since it joined the pool, and the 
members have not had an additional assessment for excess losses incurred 
by the pool. 

6. Real and Personal Property Insurance 

The City and Greenwood Utilities purchase commercial policies to insure 
its real and personal property. 

B. Commitments 

MEAM Joint Venture and Power Purchase Contract: 

Greenwood Utilities is a participant in the Municipal Energy Agency of 
Mississippi (MEAM). MEAM is a joint action agency organized and 
chartered by the State of Mississippi for the purposes of planning, 
financing, constructing and/or obtaining an electrical power and energy 
supply for the needs of its member cities: Greenwood, Canton, Durant, 
Itta Bena, Kosciusko and Leland. These cities manage and operate their 
own electrical utility system. Each member appoints one commissioner to 
MEAM's board. Members have no equity interest in MEAM, except for 
$63,179 (Greenwood Utilities' share being $27,856). MEAM is considered to 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED): 

be a joint venture, since no member can unilaterally control the 
financial or operating policies of MEAM and members have an ongoing 
financial responsibility. MEAM is exposed to credit risk in its 
arrangements with its members, suppliers and others. 

In 1984, Greenwood Utilities entered into a power purchase contract and 
power sales contract with MEAM (updated in 1992), which provides that 
Greenwood Utilities will purchase its electrical power from MEAM through 
the year 2022. Greenwood Utilities agreed to sell MEAM the excess 
capacity and electrical power generated by its generating stations, 
resulting in all the electrical power requirements of Greenwood Utilities 
being purchased from MEAM per the contract. These contracts may be 
terminated by MEAM upon termination of the interconnection agreement 
between ME&~ and Entergy. Greenwood Utilities may terminate the contracts 
following termination of MEAM's interconnection agreement or two (2) 
years written notice to MEAM of intent to terminate. 

In 2006, MEAM issued bonds for a 6% undivided interest in Plum Point 
Energy Station, a 665 MW coal-fired electric generation facility in 
Mississippi County, AR. Plum Point provides MEAM with a long-term, cost­
based source of electricity to meet a portion of its members' base load 
electrici ty requirements. MEAM is required to pay its proportionate 
share of plant operation costs, operating reserves, working capital~••..... 

requirements 	and ant closure costs. As a result, MEAM has entered intoi 	 life of unit, take-or-pay power purchase agreements with each of its 
member municipalities. These power purchase agreements require the 
municipalities to pay all of MEAM's costs associated with Plum Point. 

Sales Tax Pledge: 

w;;. 	
The City has pledged sales tax reimbursements from the State of.. 	 Mississippi to pay the Department of Environmental Quality for a sewer 
rehab revolving loan to the Sewage Enterprise Fund. The outstanding 
balance of this loan at September 30, 2014, was $5,690,680. Detailed 
information is provided in Note 3. 

The City is constructing a new wastewater treatment facility, due to the 
current wastewater treatment facility not being compliant with EPA 
requirements. The new facility must be completed by the year 2015. If 
the facility is not completed by 2015, the City may be subject to EPA 
enforced fines. 

The estimated cost of the new wastewater treatment facility proj ect is 
$39,025,000. ect funding will be provided by state and federal 
funds, a state revolving loan, as well as an increase in sewage fees. 
Sewage fees will be increased annually over five years to finance the 
loan repayment. As of September 30, 2014, the City had borrowed 
$28,075,207 in conjunction with the 
wastewater treatment facility project. 
revenue. Detailed information is provide

design and 
The City 

d in Note 3. 
has 

construction 
pledged sa

of 
les 

the 
tax 

C. Contingent Liabilities 

Grants 

The City participates in a number of state and federally funded 
programs, principal of which are the U.S. Department of Justice and the 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED): 

U.S. Department of Transportation grants. Expenditures financed by 
grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor government. If 
expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program 
regulations, the City may be required to reimburse the grantor 
government. As of September 30, 2014, the believes that disallowed 
expenditures, if any, discovered in subsequent audits will not have a 
material effect on any of the individual funds or the overall financial 
position of the City. 

Litigation 

The City is a defendant in a number of legal actions seeking actual and 
punitive damages. The is vigorously defending all matters of 
litigation and believes there will be no material adverse financial 
effects. The believes that liability insurance will cover any 
possible claims. 

In the normal course of business, Greenwood Utilities is, from time to 
time, subject to allegations that mayor do result in litigation. 
Greenwood Utilities evaluates such al tions by conducting 
invest ions to determine the validity of each potential claim. Based 
upon the advice of legal counsel, management records an estimate of the 
amount of ultimate expected loss, if any, for each. Events could occur 
that would cause the estimate of ultimate loss to differ materially in 
the near term. No estimates for loss is recorded at September 30, 2014. 

Milwaukee Tool MBIA Bond Issue 

The City issued $3,600,000 General Obligation MBIA Bonds, Series 2002, on 
December 1, 2002, for Milwaukee Electric Tool Corporation. Milwaukee 
Electric Tool Corporation is leas the real property from the City for 
12,166 monthly and adjusted to $24,864 monthly beginning August 2003, for 
the initial term and all renewal periods. The lease between the City and 
Milwaukee Tool is for 5 years commencing on November 15, 2001, with an 
option to renew for three (3) additional 5-year terms. The third option 
has been exercised. 

The bond is a general obligation of the City secured (i) by the City's 
forfeiture of its sales tax allocation and/or homestead exemption 
reimbursement, and (ii) if the City has forfeited its sales tax 
allocation and/or homestead exemption reimbursement for twelve (12) 
months, from the avails of a direct tax to be levied annually without 
limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable property within the 
geographical limits of the City, but only in the event that the sources 
by items (i) above are insufficient therefore. 

D. Joint Ventures 

The following provides the summary financial information of the Municipal 
Energy Agency of Mississippi (MEAM) as of September 30, 2014, the 
Greenwood-Leflore Airport September 30, 2013 (September 30, 2014, not yet 
issued) and the Greenwood-Leflore Industrial Board as of September 30, 
2013 (September 30, 2014, not yet 
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED): 

Municipal Energy Agency of Mississippi (MEAM) 2014 

Total assets 

Total liabilities 

Total deferred inflows of 

Total net position 

Total revenues 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net 

Total debt 

(A) 	 Financial statements 

resources 

$ 126,920,921 

$ 102,962,382 

$ 18,409,452 

position 

$ 5,549,087 

$ 39,371,451 

$ 39,321,254 

$ 50,197 

$ 100,406,732 

for MEAM can be obtained at the following 

address: Municipal Energy Agency of Mississippi, 

6000 Lakeover Road, Jackson, Mississippi 39213 

Greenwood-Leflore Airport 	 2013 

Total assets 

Total liabilities $ 223,481 

Total net position $ 10,023,317 

Total program and general revenues $ 829,830 

Total expenses $ 856,012 

Increase (decreaselin net position $ (26,182) 

Accrued compensated absences $ 14,523 

(A) 	 The percentage share of the joint venture applicable to the City of 

Greenwood is fifty percent (50%). 
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NOTE 	 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED): 

Greenwood-Leflore Industrial Board 2013 

Total assets $ 31,908 

Total liabilities $ 31,908 

Total net position $ 

Total program and revenues $ 204,538 

Total expenses $ 204,538 

Increase (decrease)in net position $ 
<.­

Accrued compensated absences 	 $ 5,624 

(A) 	 The share of the joint venture applicable to the City of 

Greenwood is fi (50%) . 

E. Economic Dependence 

The electrici Greenwood Utilities generates is sold to MEAM. The 
electricity that is sold to customers is purchased from MEAM. More 
electricity is from MEAM than is generated, resulting in 
Greenwood Utili dependent on MEAM for purchased power. 

F. Comprehensive Income 

Net 	comprehensive income is equal to net income. 

NOTE 	 6 - WRIGHT STATION CAPITAL ASSETS 

Greenwood Utili ties has placed Wright Station on cold As a 
result, Wright Station capital assets are considered to be idle. The 
carrying amount of these capital assets at year-end was $0. Effective 
January I, 2014, Greenwood Utilities no longer receives capacity 
from ME&~ for the Wright Generating Station. 

NOTE 	 7 - INVENTORY WRITE-DOWN 

In fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, management and the Board of 
Commissioners of Greenwood Utilities made the decision to write down coal 
inventory to $0 to reflect the lower of cost or market, as Greenwood 
Utilities no intends to use the coal for electric 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 8 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

In 2014, the City recorded ustments to its government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. The adjustments were to correct 
the following; 

Correction of an error - Adjustments to correct a prior year error in 
recording an asset and liability. 

2013 Beginning 
Fund Balance 

Prior Period 
Adjustment 

2013 Adjusted 
Fund Balance 

ustment 
leases for 

to depreciate capital 
the Solid Waste 

Enterprise Fund $ 965,280 $ (714,156) $ 251,124 

Adjustment to depreciate capital 
leases for the General Fund Fire 
Department in the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements $ 25,071,395 $ (125,211) $ 24,946,184 

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In fiscal year 2015, the City entered into a capital lease for the 
purchase of five (5) new 2015 Ford Explorers. The purchase of these 
police vehicles provides for a better service in patrolling the City's 
streets. Payments on this capital lease begin March, 2015 with 36 monthly 
payments in the amount of $4,292 at an interest rate of 1.6%. 

In addition the City plans to enter into another capital lease for the 
purchase of five (5) garbage trucks and four (4) trash trucks with 
estimated monthly payments of $43,634 over 36 months at an interest rate 
of 1.55% as soon as the (4) trash trucks are delivered. The purchase of 
these trucks provides for a more ef ficient service in picking up the 
City's trash and garbage. 

In March 2015, the City issued G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, to 
provide funds for the advance refunding of the current 2005 and 2006 G.O. 
Bonds, as well as the payment of the associated bond issuance costs. A 
total of $2,155,000 was received from the 2015 bond issuance and will pay 
down the 2005 and 2006 G.0. Bonds outstanding balances to $70,000 and 
$95,000, respectively. 

In May 2015, the City issued Tax Increment Limited Obligation (TIF) 
Bonds, Series 2015, in the amount of $265,000 to assist in the 
development of the Landing Retail Center, a commercial property that 
operates as a convenience store and truck fueling station. 

On February 3, 2015, the City issued G.O. Public Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2015, in the amount of $3,000,000 to raise money for erect 
repairing, adorning and equipping a muni 1 building for the use of a 
police station. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Notes to Financial Statements 


September 30, 2014 


NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED): 

The City has purchased 1013 Sycamore Street located in the Greenwood­
Leflore Industrial Park at a price of $1,500,000 with renovations, 
archi tect and legal and professional fees estimated to be $3,500,000. 
The City has received a $500,000 MDA (Mississippi Development Authority) 
ACE grant, a MDA CDBG $2,500,000 economic development grant, and a SMEPA 
(South Mississippi Electric Power Association) loan in the amount of 
$2,000,000 at 0% interest to be repaid over ten years. Milwaukee Electric 
Tool Corporation has agreed to monthly lease payments in order to service 
the $2,000,000 debt. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 22, 2015, the 
date on which the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 
Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials 

September 30, 2014 

BOND 
NAME POSITION COMPANY AMOUNT 

CAROLYN H. MCADAMS MAYOR TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

THOMAS GREGORY, III CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER FCCI INS GROUP $ 50,000 

NICK JOSEPH, JR. CITY CLERK FCCI INS GROUP $ 50,000 

RAYMOND K. MOORE POLICE CHIEF TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 50,000 

JOHN JENNINGS, JR. COUNCILMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

CARL PALMER COUNCILMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

LISA C. COOKSTON COUNCILWOMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

CHARLES E. MCCOY, SR. COUNCILMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

DOROTHY ANN GLENN COUNCILWOMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

DAVID L. JORDAN COUNCILMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 

RONALD STEVENSON COUNCILMAN TRAVELERS CASUALTY $ 100,000 
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FT Fred T. Neely, CPARobert K. VanDevender, CPA 
(1&97-1967)Lance Mohamed, CPA 

Billy Joe Killebrew, CPARobert A. Hearn, CPA 
FRED T. NEELY & COMPANY (1942-2010) 
CERTIFIED PUBlh.': ACCOUNTANTSW. Lee Mattox, CPA Ralph F. Neely, CPA 

William A. Adams, CPA (1927 - ) 
Gay G. Moss, CPA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 


IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


To the City Council 

City ofGreenwood, Mississippi 


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Greenwood, Mississippi (the City), 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the fmancial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 22, 2015. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to 
identifY all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be material weakness: 2014-1. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's fmancial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government A uditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an 

105 West President Ave.· P.O. Box &94· Greenwood, MS 3&935· P. 662-453-7112· F. 662-453-7123 
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City Council 
June 22, 2015 

Page 2 


integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal 

~•.. control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Ii 
Fred T. Neely & Company, PLLC 

~7Mct;d~~, aL~ 
Greenwood, Mississippi 

June 22, 2015 
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FT Fred T. Neely, CPARobert K. VanDevender, CPA 
(l897-1967)Lance Mohamed, CPA 

Billy Joe Killebrew, CPARobert A. Hearn, CPA 
FRED T. NEELY & COMPANY (1942-2010) 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTSW. Lee Mattox, CPA Ralph F. Neely, CPA 

William A. Adams, CPA (1927 - ) 

Gay G. Moss, CPA 

IJ..'·.·.•, INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON 
COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS " 

To the City Council 

City of Greenwood, Mississippi 


We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Greenwood, 
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30,2014, and have issued our report thereon dated June 22, 2015. We have 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. The financial statements of the Greenwood Tourism 
Commission and the Greenwood-Leflore Public Library were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we have also performed 
procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state 
laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of those 
procedures and our audit of the basic financial statements disclosed material instances of noncompliance with state laws and 
regulations presented as 2014-2 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings. 

This report is intended for the information of the City's management, the City Council, and the Office of the State Auditor and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public 
record and its distribution is not limited. 

Fred T. Neely & Company, PLLC 

~ ?";t//C7J-/c,M~./~t.<-
Greenwood, Mississippi 

June 22, 2015 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 


Year Ended September 30. 2014 


2013-1. Findings relating to Financial Statements Audit 

~..... 	 Condition: Since the City's books were maintained in accordance with 
~ state budgetary law, management requested us to assist in converting 

your accounting records from the budgetary basis to the accrual basis 
so that the financial statements could be prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Management also requested us to prepare a draft of the City's 
financial statements, including the related notes to the financial 
statements. The outsourcing of this service is not unusual in cities of 
your size and 	was a result of the City's cost benefit decision to use 
our accounting expertise rather than to incur internal resource costs. 

Management reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those 
financial statements prior to their issuance; however, management did 
not perform a detailed review of the financial statements. The absence 

I.'. 	 of this control procedure was considered a material weakness because
i 	 there is more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of 

the financial statements could occur and not be prevented or detected 
by the City's internal control over financial reporting. 

Recommendation: Management should perform a detailed review of the 
financial statements and note disclosures before issuance. 

Current Status: Not corrected. 

2013-2. Findings relating to State Legal Compliance 

Condition: Expenditures exceeded the adopted budget in eight 
functional categories. 

Recommendation: Management should make budget adjustments as allowed 
by Mississippi Code Ann. (1972), Section 21-35-25 to ensure compliance 
with state law. 

Current Status: Not corrected. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings 


Year Ended September 30, 2014 


SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

1. 	The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the 
financial statements of the City of Greenwood, Mississippi. 

2. 	One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the 
financial statements is reported in this schedule. This deficiency 
is reported as a material weakness. 

3. 	No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of 
the City of Greenwood, Mississippi, were disclosed during the audit. 

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MATERIAL WEAKNESS 

2014-1: Financial Statements and Related Disclosures 

Condition: Since the City's books are maintained in accordance with 
state budgetary law, management requested us to assist in converting 
your accounting records from the budgetary basis to the accrual basis so 
that the financial statements could be prepared in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. Management also requested us 
to prepare a draft of the City's financial statements, including the 
related notes to the financial statements. The outsourcing of this 
service is not unusual in Cities of your size and is a result of the 
City's cost benefit decision to use our accounting expertise rather than 
to incur internal resource costs. 

Criteria: The City is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal controls over financial reporting. Under generally 
accepted aUditing standards, outside auditors cannot be considered a 
part of the City's internal control structure, and the design of the 
City's internal control structure does not include procedures for its 
preparation of external financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Cause: The City has opted not to incur the additional costs that it 
would take to train and keep personnel abreast of the requirements 
necessary to prepare the financial statements and the related footnote 
disclosures. 

Effect: The preparation of its financial statements, related footnote 
disclosures and required supplemental information are outsourced. 
However, management reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for 
the financial statements prior to their issuance. 

The absence of this control procedure is considered a material weakness 
because there is more than a remote likelihood that a material 
misstatement of the financial statements could occur and not be 
prevented or detected by the City's internal control. 

Recommendation: Due to the cost of hiring and keeping personnel abreast 
of the requirements necessary to prepare the financial statements and 
the related footnote disclosures, no change is recommended. 
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CITY OF GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 

Schedule of Findings 


Year Ended September 30, 2014 


FINDING - STATE LEGAL COMPLIANCE 

2014-2 : 

Amendments to the budget were not made as allowed by Mississippi Code 
Ann. (1972), Section 21-35-25, and, as a result, expenditures exceeded 
the budget in four functional categories. 
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